
Mayor 
David Allison 
 

Council Members 
Tom Bailer 
Cathy Sherman 
Jeff  Guard 
Melina Meyer 
Anne Schaefer 
Kristin Carpenter 
Ken Jones 
 

City Manager 
Helen Howarth 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Awaiting Student 
Council confirmation 
 

 
Regular City Council Meeting 

September 21, 2022 @ 7:00 pm 
Cordova Center Comm Rooms  

Agenda  
 

A. Call to order  
 
B. Invocation, pledge of allegiance  
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United 
States of America, and to the republic for which 
it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with 
liberty and justice for all.  
  
C. Roll call 
Mayor David Allison, Council members Tom 
Bailer, Cathy Sherman, Jeff Guard, Melina 
Meyer, Anne Schaefer, Kristin Carpenter, and 
Ken Jones 

 
D. Approval of Regular Agenda…………………………………………………...………….…….. (voice vote) 

 
E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest and Ex Parte Communications 

• conflicts as defined in Cordova Municipal Code 3.10.010 should be declared, then Mayor rules on whether member should be 
recused, Council can appeal the Mayor’s ruling  

• ex parte should be declared here, the content of the ex parte should be explained when the item comes before Council, ex parte 
does not recuse a member, it is required that ex parte is declared and explained 

 
F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
1. Guest Speakers: Kristin Carpenter, ED-PWSEDD and Rebecca Braun, McKinley…....… (page 1) 
 Research Group, PWS Ferry Authority Feasibility Study 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items…………...........…………..……... (3 minutes per speaker) 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  (CCMCA BoD, School Board Rep) 
4. Student Council Report – awaiting confirmation of Student Council representative 
 
G. Approval of Consent Calendar 
5. Minutes of the September 7, 2022 Regular Council Meeting….….………..................…...…... (page 11) 
 
H. Approval of Minutes - in consent calendar 
 
I. Consideration of Bids/Proposals/Contracts 
6. Award of Contract to Envirosafety/Public Safety Center for 23 sets of…………. (voice vote)(page 16) 
 Fire PPE for $41,991.52 
7. Award of Contract to Trailer Craft of Anchorage for a snowplow for an…..……. (voice vote)(page 18) 
 Emergency Vehicle for $10,200 
 
J. Reports of Officers  
8. Mayor’s Report 
9. City Manager’s Report – 2023 City Budget Preparation Schedule…………………….………. (page 20) 
 a. South Harbor Rebuild update  

b. Financial Report through 08-31-22……………………………………………………………...… (page 21) 
10. City Clerk’s Report  
 



Executive Sessions per Cordova Municipal Code 3.14.030 
• subjects which may be considered are: (1) matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the 

government; (2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3) 
matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law 
are not subject to public disclosure. 

• subjects may not be considered in the executive session except those mentioned in the motion calling for the executive session, unless 
they are auxiliary to the main question 

• action may not be taken in an executive session except to give direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of a 
specific legal matter or pending labor negotiations 

 

if you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  

 

K. Correspondence…………………………………………....……….... (see primer for description page 23) 
11. 8-26-22 Final SEIS from Dept of Navy on training exercise in Gulf…………..……….……... (page 24) 
12. 9-2-22 Email from J. Burton regarding proposed kelp farm/mariculture lease……….…..... (page 28) 
13. 9-7-22 Agency Review for Land Use Permit, NVE in Sheep Bay……………………..……… (page 29) 
14. 9-7-22 Email from T. Sheridan reiterating interest in Harbor Com appointment……..…..... (page 79) 
15. 9-16-22 Public and Agency Notice for Aquatic Farmsite Lease Wild Blue………..………… (page 80) 
 Mariculture, Amber Morris, ADL 233817 
 
L. Ordinances and Resolutions  
16. Ordinance 1202……………………………………………………………….....…….. (roll call vote)(page 82) 

An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, enacting Section 5.22.030 
codifying the Land Disposal Map process to increase public awareness of municipal land 
status – 2nd reading 

17. Ordinance 1203……………………………………………………………………...… (roll call vote)(page 87) 
An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, amending Cordova Municipal 
Code Sections 1.04.255, 1.20.010, 2.06.030, 2.18.050, 2.24.020, 2.56.017, 3.14.020, 
3.40.090, 4.12.030, 5.12.110, 5.14.020, 5.24.040, 5.32.080, 5.32.150, 5.36.110, 
5.40.150, 10.52.030, 10.52.050, 10.54.040, 10.54.070, 11.32.050, 13.24.030, 
17.24.040, 18.68.030 and 18.72.080 to define the terms “publish” and “publication” and 
to clarify the notice and publication requirements under the Cordova Municipal Code – 
2nd reading 

 
M. Unfinished Business - none 
 
N. New & Miscellaneous Business 
18. Pending Agenda, CIP List, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists…….................... (page 102) 

 
O. Audience Participation 

 
P. Council Comments 

 
Q. Executive Session 
City Council is permitted to enter an executive session if an explicit motion is made to do so calling out the subject to be discussed 
and if that subject falls into one of the 4 categories noted below. Therefore, even if specific agenda items are not listed under the 
Executive Session header on the agenda, any item on the agenda may trigger discussion on that item that is appropriate for or legally 
requires an executive session. In the event executive session is appropriate or required, Council may make a motion to enter executive 
session right during debate on that agenda item or could move to do so later in the meeting. 
 
R. Adjournment 
 
 

http://www.cityofcordova.net/


 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS RFP #2021-1: 

Feasibility Study for a Prince William Sound Ferry Authority 

 
Purpose 

The Prince William Sound Economic Development District (PWSEDD) requests 
written proposals from qualified professional consulting firms for assessing the 
viability of a regional ferry authority or other mechanism that would manage 
providing ferry service to Prince William Sound communities. A ferry authority 
is anticipated to be charged with managing vessel operations, scheduling, 
budgeting and financial planning, and vessel crews. Following work done by 
the Alaska Marine Highway Reshaping Work Group, which recommended that 
the State of Alaska  “partner with community groups, local and tribal 
authorities for them to take over local ferry operations” (Report to the Governor, 
October 2020), the communities of Chenega, Cordova, Tatitlek, Valdez and 
Whittier want to explore the feasibility of creating an independent ferry 
authority that would contract with the State of Alaska for the responsibility of 
managing regional ferry service to their ports.  
 
Ferry service to Prince William Sound communities is essential for supporting 
our rural and remote coastal economies. The State’s Alaska Marine Highway 
System serves residents, visitors, and commercial shippers in each of our five 
PWS communities, and two-thirds of AMHS passengers are Alaska residents 
(Economic Impacts of AMHS, McDowell Group, 2016). Economic benefits from 
ferry service accrue to coastal communities in the form of employment of ferry 
crews, residents of roadless and remote communities using the system for 
transportation, tourist visitors using the system for transportation, and 
shipping of retail and commercial goods and equipment to and from towns. 
 
Preliminary Scope of Services 

A preliminary scope of services is provided below. The PWSEDD has an 
Executive Director who will provide support for the consultant throughout the 
development of the feasibility study, however, it is expected that the consultant 
will perform the majority of the work involved. Specific details concerning the 
scope of services, PWSEDD or partner staff vs. consultant tasks, deliverable 
schedules, and fees for each project task will be negotiated after a consultant is 
selected. Work is expected to begin upon consultant selection. 

1



 

 
 
 

The project is envisioned to involve partner and community participation which 
may drive new or additional tasks not listed below. We would like for the 
process to begin with a facilitated planning session among regional 
stakeholders to explain the concept and scope of the project. At a minimum, 
the contents of the feasibility study should include an assessment of: 

PHASE 1 Assessment 

• Public process and stakeholder engagement plan that lays out a series of 
meetings/communications to present the process, identify key 
opportunities for public participation. 

• Identify ferry service operations parameters:  what regulatory compliance 
factors will drive ferry system capacity (e.g. operate day service schedule 
or overnight, need to have two vessels in the system or one, desired crew 
size). 

• Revenue analysis:  analysis of ferry scheduling and types of routes 
needed to maximize service within budget; target passenger and vehicle 
levels that would keep PWS ferry service within its financial goals; 
identify stakeholder partnerships that can be developed to support PWS 
ferry service; identify competition and long-term factors that may 
adversely affect demand. 

• Operations analysis for establishment of an independent, regional ferry 
authority and its operating costs, including recommendations for optimal 
crew and staff requirements for each vessel, terminal and operational 
support and management. 

PHASE II Assessment: if study results illustrate that a regional PWS ferry 
system is viable, we will continue with further analysis of system operations: 

• Identify capital needs: determine class of vessels best suited for basic 
service needs in Prince William Sound; identify needs and costs for vessel 
upgrades and/or replacement. 

• Establish financial model for operations: identify the mix of funding 
sources, including federal and State funding and earned income that will 
provide the most stable basis for regional transportation infrastructure; 
propose strategies for increasing the fare box recovery rate and revenue 
enhancement with current assets; and propose scenario(s) for lease or 
ownership of ferry system assets.  

2



 

 
 
 

Proposal Information 
Proposals are due at 2 p.m. Alaska time on Friday, May 6, 2022.  Late 
proposals will not be considered. A response will be sent immediately when 
proposals are received. It is the proposer’s responsibility to ensure delivery of 
its proposal.  
 
Electronically submitted proposals are preferred and will be accepted by email 
sent to executivedirector@pwsedd.org. The email subject line shall read: “RFP 
#2021 – 1, PWS Regional Ferry Authority Feasibility Study”, and the proposals 
shall be attached to the email as a PDF file. Only one electronic copy is 
required. 
 
For paper copy proposals, please submit two (2) copies in a sealed envelope 
plainly marked, “RFP #2021 – 1, PWS Regional Ferry Authority Feasibility 
Study” addressed to the Executive Director, PWSEDD, P.O. Box 1059, Cordova, 
AK 99574.  
 
Questions regarding this proposal may be directed to Kristin Carpenter, 
Executive Director, at 907-424-5533 or executivedirector@pwsedd.org. 
 
The PWSEDD reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive 
technical or legal deficiencies, to accept any proposal that is in the best interest 
of the organization, and to negotiate the terms and conditions of any proposal 
leading to acceptance and final execution of a contract for services. In the event 
it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, addenda will be posted on 
the PWSEDD web page. Proposer shall indicate receipt of addenda, if any. 
 
Proposal Format and Scoring 
Proposals will be reviewed by PWSEDD Board Members, staff, and 
representatives from project partners and scored based on qualifications as 
noted below. The firm with the highest scoring submittal (of 100 possible 
points) will be invited to enter into a contract with the PWSEDD.  
 
1. Project understanding and approach (40 points). 

a. Proposed work plan, including a public engagement plan, based upon 
the scope of work in the plan.  Please discuss research design and 

3



 

 
 
 

how research from previous AMHS ferry system analyses will be used 
(32 points). 

b. Discuss the proposed timeline for the project. Include discussion of 
how consultant will coordinate with project partners, and what 
assistance consultant will need (4 points). 

c. Include consultant fee and expenses, fee schedule and billing rates (4 
points). 

 
2. Relevant firm experience and qualifications (40 points). 

a. Show experience (both of key personnel and of the firm) in conducting 
similar analyses. Please discuss specifics (30 points). 

b. Provide at least three client references for the firm from previous 
comparable feasibility studies or ferry system operations research that 
demonstrate firm’s ability (10 points). 

 
3. Description of key staff including roles, expertise, availability, and other 

relevant experience (20 points). Include resumes for key staff in an 
appendix to the proposal. 

 
Proposals shall not exceed 8 pages in length (and may be less). One page is 
described as one side of a standard 8½” by 11” sheet of paper. The page limit 
does not include covers, table of contents, cover letter, section divider pages, 
staff resumes, or attachments of sample work. Resumes are limited to two 
pages per person. 
 
The anticipated schedule is as follows: 
 
March 23, 2022, PWSEDD issues RFP 
May 6, 2022, Firms submit proposals 
May 13, 2022, PWSEDD and partners score proposals and a contractor is 
selected 
May 17, 2022, Contract negotiated, signed, and notice to proceed issued 
March 31, 2023, PWS Regional Ferry Authority feasibility study completed. 
 
 

4



 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROPOSAL 
Feasibility Study for a Prince William 
Sound Ferry Authority 

 
Submitted in association with Coastwise Corporation 

PREPARED FOR:  

Prince William Sound Economic Development District 

May 6, 2022 

5



 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Cover Letter ................................................................................................................... 1 
Project Understanding and Approach .......................................................................... 3 

Workplan ......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Phase 1 ....................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Phase 2 ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Project Timeline .............................................................................................................................. 6 
Fees and Expenses ......................................................................................................................... 7 
Relevant Firm Experience and Qualifications .............................................................................. 8 
Key Personnel ................................................................................................................................. 9 
Client References ........................................................................................................................ 10 

Key Staff Resumes ....................................................................................................... 11 
Susan Bell, McKinley Research President ................................................................... 11 
Jim Calvin, McKinley Research VP and Senior Economist .......................................... 12 
Pat Eberhardt PE, Coastwise Principal Engineer ........................................................ 13 
Rebecca Braun, McKinley Research Senior Consultant .............................................. 14 

 

 

 

 

6



 

MCKINLEY RESEARCH GROUP 3 

 

Project Understanding and Approach 

Workplan 

Consistent with the RFP, we have outlined a two-phase study process: Phase 1 provides a 

comprehensive assessment of the viability of a regional ferry system and Phase 2, if warranted, 

provides capital costs and financial modeling for operating revenues and costs. The workplans 

for each phase are described below. 

Phase 1 

Phase 1 includes: 

• Public involvement 

• Determination of ferry system requirements 

• Definition of ferry service alternatives 

• Revenue analysis 

• Operations cost analysis 

• Service alternative comparison and selection. 

Public Involvement/Stakeholder Outreach: Public involvement is a key aspect of this project. 

As described in the RFP, the project will begin with a facilitated online planning session among 

key stakeholders from across the region to broadly determine the level and type of ferry service 

desired. With respect to broader public involvement, ideally the project would start with an initial 

round of in-person community meetings to introduce the project and seek input on each 

community’s specific ferry service needs. However, with limited budget resources, we 

recommend an in-person site visit to Cordova early in the project, coupled with virtual interactive 

meetings with other communities. We would also travel to Cordova later in the project to present 

and discuss study results, with associated online engagement with other communities.  

We place high research value on one-on-one outreach to stakeholders and have included in our 

workplan interviews with key people in each community. With PWSEDD’s input we look forward 

to developing a list of key stakeholders to interview.  

Determination of Ferry System Requirements: The first step in the planning process is to 

establish traffic baselines and minimum service needs. Through review of historical service and 

traffic data, along with public and stakeholder input, the type and frequency of required or 

desired service, by community, will be established. The type of payload (passengers, cars, RVs, 

cargo vans) will also be defined and a required minimum sailing frequency established. Marine 

transportation systems have very long lifespans, so traffic growth must be estimated many years 

into the future. 

7



 

MCKINLEY RESEARCH GROUP 4 

 

We will identify the required physical service area characteristics, such as ferry routes, distances 

between ports, and sea conditions. Other ferry system requirements also need to be defined. 

For example, regulatory framework, weather conditions, sea keeping (passenger comfort) 

minimums, and other environmental limitations.  System reliability should also be determined.  

Definition of PWS Ferry System Alternatives: Based on the desired amount of ferry service 

and the established system requirements, several ferry system alternatives will be developed to 

a concept level. Each concept will include route, speed, vessel size, arrangement (payload 

capacity), crew, and environmental capability. Through analysis of these alternatives, we will 

determine which configuration of vessels and routes can more efficiently accomplish the PWS 

ferry mission. Specifically, day-boat ferries and supplemental passenger-only service will be 

analyzed to see if these alternatives can meet system goals. 

Key factors in this analysis include: 

• Vessel Size and Accommodations.  The primary goal of any ferry vessel is to safely carry 

the required payload, so vessel size, arrangement, and capacity are primary design 

goals.  Roll on/Roll off cargo and passenger vessels must meet a complicated set of 

USCG requirements, so compliance to regulatory standards is also a primary vessel 

design objective.   

• Crewing. Crewing is the single most important ferry service operating cost factor. 

Applicable US Coast Guard regulations and policies must be strictly followed. A key 

challenge in PWS will be aligning vessel characteristics and service schedules to 

minimize required crew size, total crew needed to operate the ferry (or ferries), as well 

as crew housing costs (if necessary), and other factors.   

• Back-up service. Another critical consideration is how services will be provided when 

the primary vessel is tied up or in dry dock for scheduled or unscheduled maintenance 

and repair work. A two-vessel fleet would be ideal but may not be economically feasible. 

We will consider how back-up service might be provided through arrangements with 

AMHS, contracts with private passenger and freight carriers, or other options. 

Revenue Analysis: Extensive historical AMHS PWS traffic data is available to inform an analysis 

of revenue potential for each PWS ferry alternative. Careful analysis of the relationship between 

traffic, revenue, and service frequency/convenience will be required. PWS generated the most 

annual revenue when fast ferry service was provided. Conventional hull ferry service will most 

likely not have the same revenue-generating potential.  

The revenue analysis must be conducted in close coordination with the operations analysis. The 

objective is to optimize service so revenues match (as closely as possible) operating costs, while 

still providing a necessary basic level of ferry service to PWS communities. 

The revenue analysis will also include an outlook for market conditions, including the region’s 

population forecast, anticipated visitor travel to the region, economic development initiatives 

8



 

MCKINLEY RESEARCH GROUP 5 

 

that might affect travel demand, potential competition in the PWS ferry market, and other 

factors.  

It is possible, if not likely, that revenue sources other than the fare box will be required to sustain 

ferry service in PWS. Potential federal, state, and local (including tribal) governments have 

varying potential as sources of revenue. This Phase 1 revenue assessment will principally identify 

these sources and their potential. Phase 2 financial modeling will include a more detailed 

analysis of these non-operating revenue sources. 

Operations Cost Analysis: For each PWS ferry alternative, operational costs will be estimated.  

This analysis will define an operating model that would provide necessary ferry service in PWS, 

including vessel operations, terminal operations, reservations systems, and system 

administration. This is the most complex aspect of the study, where the study team will estimate 

all fixed and variable costs associated with a PWS ferry system. Variable costs will depend on 

vessel type, crewing, service frequency, and other factors. The Inter-Island Ferry Authority (IFA) 

serves as a good model for estimating administration/management costs. 

Comparison and Selection of Preferred Ferry Alternative: Alternatives will then be compared 

using revenue, operation costs, and level of service to select the “best value” ferry service to the 

PWS region. Consideration will be given to the alternative which provides maximum service with 

the least subsidy. The preferred alternative will then be further defined and studied in Phase 2. 

It is unlikely Phase 1 will provide an absolute determination of ferry system “viability.” Rather, it 

will provide the information necessary to identify an operating model (or models) that are most 

cost and revenue efficient and the degree to which public or other partner support may be 

required to provide sustainable service. 

Phase 2 

If Phase 1 study results suggest a regional PWS ferry system could be viable, the study team will 

move to Phase 2, taking a deeper look at the system’s capital costs and establishing a financial 

model for operations. A risk analysis will also be included.  

Capital needs: The study team will identify capital costs necessary to construct or acquire the 

vessels needed to provide safe and reliable ferry service in PWS. The capital cost analysis will 

include the time and anticipated costs associated with vessel re-power and refurbishments. It is 

possible that the ideal vessel or vessels might not align perfectly with existing AMHS terminals. 

If that is the case, we will also estimate the cost of terminal modifications. 

Business/Financial planning: Building on Phase 1 findings, business planning will include 

detailed operating cash flow analysis, analysis of non-operating revenue needs and sources, 

asset acquisition strategies, costs of port authority formation, and other factors. To the extent 

data is available, we will use historical AMHS data and previous market research to quantify the 

9



 

MCKINLEY RESEARCH GROUP 6 

 

price sensitivity of travel demand. Passenger and vehicle fares will require optimization, where 

prices are high enough to generate needed revenue but not so high as to materially constrain 

traffic. 

Risk analysis: An additional evaluation component we will include in Phase 2 is risk analysis. 

Costs will be sensitive to several key factors, namely labor and fuel prices. Labor costs will vary 

with service schedules and, potentially, union issues and the broader economic climate. Overall 

viability of the system could hinge on labor costs. Fuel prices will also be a risk factor and it will 

be important to understand bottom-line impacts of fuel price increases.  

Project Timeline 

The project schedule is broadly outlined in the following table, with project launch in mid-May 

(or as soon as the notice-to-proceed is issued) and project completion by March 31, 2023. We 

look forward to working with PWSEDD to develop a more detailed timeline, particularly for the 

public involvement process. 

PWS Ferry Authority Feasibility Study Project Timeline 

Task 
May/ 
June 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Facilitated Planning Session           

Analysis of Ferry System 
Requirements 

     
     

Definition of Service Alternatives            

Revenue Analysis           

Operating Cost Analysis           

Analysis/Selection of Preferred 
Alternative 

          

Phase 1 Completion           

Capital Cost Analysis           

Financial Modeling           

Risk Analysis           

Final Study Completion           

 

 

10



 

Reg Mtg Min 
September 7, 2022   
Page 1 of 5 

* Bailer’s comments referenced from the 08/03/22 regular meeting 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 7, 2022 @ 7:00 pm 

Cordova Center Community Rooms A & B 
Minutes 

 
A. Call to order – Mayor David Allison called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00 pm on 
September 7, 2022, in the Cordova Center Community Rooms. 
 
B. Invocation and pledge of allegiance – Mayor Allison led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
C. Roll call - Present for roll call were Mayor David Allison and Council members Tom Bailer, Cathy 
Sherman, Jeff Guard, Anne Schaefer, Kristin Carpenter, and Ken Jones. Council member Melina 
Meyer was present via zoom. Also present were City Manager Helen Howarth and City Clerk Susan 
Bourgeois.   
 
D. Approval of Regular Agenda – M/Schaefer S/Guard to approve the agenda. 
With no objection, Mayor Allison declared the agenda approved as presented. 
 
E. Disclosures of Conflicts of Interest and ex parte communications 
Council member Guard declared a conflict on item 19 because he had written the letter of interest for the 
property in question. Mayor Allison agreed with the conflict.  
 
F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors 
1. Guest speakers – none  
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items: 
Tommy Sheridan of 610 Spruce spoke in favor of item 10 – mariculture permit. Later under audience 
participation he will reference mariculture in general. 
Jeff Guard (as a citizen not Council member) of 902 Cliff Trail spoke in favor of the passage of item 19 – 
he and his wife hope to buy some City tidelands to increase the size of their lot enough to divide into 2 lots 
so they can put up another single family residence. 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions – no representatives from School Board 
or CCMC reported. 
4. Student Council Report – awaiting new representative. 
 
G. Approval of Consent Calendar  
5. Minutes of the August 3, 2022 Special City Council Meeting 
6. Minutes of the August 3, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting  
Council member Bailer called out the regular meeting minutes to be approved outside the consent 
calendar. Mayor Allison placed them as item 6 under H. Approval of Minutes. 
Vote on the Consent Calendar: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Sherman-yes; Jones-yes; Guard-yes; Carpenter-yes; 
Bailer-yes; Meyer-yes; and Schaefer-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 
H. Approval of Minutes 
6. Minutes of the August 3, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting * 
M/Guard S/Schaefer to approve the Minutes of the August 3, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting  
M/Bailer S/Carpenter to strike “and he had the road changed” in the following sentence in Denise 
Branshaw’s comments on page 1 of the minutes “Tom Bailer’s property is behind hers and there used 
to be an easement between them that he had vacated (and he had the road changed) – she asked for that 
to be on the record”. 
Bailer said he wanted this part stricken because it is not true. 
 

11



 

Reg Mtg Min 
September 7, 2022   
Page 2 of 5 

Guard asked how we could remedy this if Council member Bailer wants to correct something that was 
stated which was untrue. 
Bourgeois said minutes should not be amended unless there is a correction to be made to them based 
on them having been written incorrectly. She suggested that Bailer could make a statement tonight giving 
his point of view and that would be written into tonight’s minutes. Guard asked if there could be a footnote 
that refers the reader to look at the September 7 meeting minutes. Bourgeois said she could do that.  
Bailer withdrew his amendment but asked the Clerk to proceed with the footnote as mentioned. Therefore, 
Council was ready to vote the main motion – approval of the minutes.  
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion was approved. 
 
I. Consideration of Bids/Proposals/Contracts – none 
 
J. Reports of Officers  
7. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Allison had provided a written report. Sherman had no questions but 
commented that she appreciated the Mayor making the time to attend the dedication of Sally’s garden 
and swiftly making the call to retreat indoors during the downpour. Schaefer thanked him for getting the 
letter in to AMHS and she asked if he knew when we’d know the winter schedule. Carpenter heard maybe 
Friday or Monday. 
a. Introduction of and swearing in ceremony for Andrew Goss, Chief of Police 
Mayor Allison read a short bio of Andrew Goss – new Cordova Chief of Police, he introduced him, 
conducted an oath of office swearing in ceremony, and Goss said a few words and introduced his family 
in the audience. There was applause from the audience. 
8. Manager’s Report – City Manager Helen Howarth reported: 1) really close to closing on the bond for 
the Harbor project; also – the RFP should be ready to put out by end of the month – we should have a 
robust response to the RFP – a firm was in today asking questions about details of the project. 2) financials 
are in, but does not include first half property tax, next report will have that – other revenues are looking 
like they are coming in higher than expected. 

a. South Harbor Rebuild update – written report – Council had no further questions 
b. Financial Report through 07-31-22 
c. Staff Quarterly Reports – 2Q 2022 
 i. Fire Marshal Paul Trumblee, Cordova Volunteer Fire Dept 

Council questions for the Manager: Bailer asked about staffing, where are we with numbers and unfilled 
positions? Howarth said we have had people leave and have replaced them; Bronson is coming on to 
champion the on-the-ground work on the Harbor project.  Schaefer said she was hoping there’d have been 
a CCMC rep here – wondered if Howarth knew about our access to boosters locally. Howarth said as soon 
as we get some, they will announce availability. Schaefer asked about testing kits – Howarth said the City 
and hospital have many, people can ask if they need. 
9. City Clerk’s Report – written report in packet 

 
K. Correspondence  
10. 7-27-22 Agency review for ADL 234012 for Anya Honkola dba Bluff Point 
11. 8-2-22 Email from B. Johnson regarding Whitshed Pedestrian Project 
12. 8-15-22 USFS S. Namitz comments on aquatic farmsite lease ADL 234012  
13. 8-15-22 USF&WS public comment period for Incidental Take Regulations under MMPA Marine 
Mammal Protection Act re: Sea Otters 
14. 8-23-22 Mayor Allison letter re AMHS draft 22-23 winter schedule  
14a. 09-01-22 Interested Parties Letter re Shore Fishery Lease extensions 
Jones commented on item 10 – he is generally in support of mariculture activities – he just wants to state 
that if anyone is interested in pursuing one of these leases he thinks it would be advantageous to sit down 
with CDFU to discuss locations. He said this one happens to be right in the way of a traditional seine set 

12



 

Reg Mtg Min 
September 7, 2022   
Page 3 of 5 

area. Recently NVE had an application in and CDFU reached out to them and they adjusted the area. He 
doesn’t want these industries to have to fight for territory. 
 
L. Ordinances and Resolutions  
15. Ordinance 1202 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, enacting Section 5.22.030 
codifying the Land Disposal Map process to increase public awareness of municipal land status – 1st 
reading 
M/Bailer S/Schaefer to adopt Ordinance 1202 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
enacting Section 5.22.030 codifying the Land Disposal Map process to increase public awareness of 
municipal land status 
Bailer referred to the Planner’s memo on page 57 of the packet where it says processing these will take 
an additional 3-5 hours – are the citizens who put in letters of interest going to be charged for those hours? 
Planner Kevin Johnson answered that he was just giving Council a sense of what this would cost in staff 
time, the citizens won’t be charged for that. Schaefer said she likes the notice practices that are included 
with this, Council had discussed the same earlier this year and she is in support. Bailer opined that maybe 
this could be something Planning Commission does without Council, to streamline the process a little – 
they could decide available or unavailable not Council.  
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion was approved. 
16. Ordinance 1203 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, amending Cordova 
Municipal Code Sections 1.04.255, 1.20.010, 2.06.030, 2.18.050, 2.24.020, 2.56.017, 3.14.020, 3.40.090, 
4.12.030, 5.12.110, 5.14.020, 5.24.040, 5.32.080, 5.32.150, 5.36.110, 5.40.150, 10.52.030, 10.52.050, 
10.54.040, 10.54.070, 11.32.050, 13.24.030, 17.24.040, 18.68.030 and 18.72.080 to define the terms 
“publish” and “publication” and to clarify the notice and publication requirements under the Cordova 
Municipal Code – 1st reading 
M/Schaefer S/Carpenter to adopt Ordinance 1203 An ordinance of the Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, amending Cordova Municipal Code Sections 1.04.255, 1.20.010, 2.06.030, 2.18.050, 2.24.020, 
2.56.017, 3.14.020, 3.40.090, 4.12.030, 5.12.110, 5.14.020, 5.24.040, 5.32.080, 5.32.150, 5.36.110, 
5.40.150, 10.52.030, 10.52.050, 10.54.040, 10.54.070, 11.32.050, 13.24.030, 17.24.040, 18.68.030 and 
18.72.080 to define the terms “publish” and “publication” and to clarify the notice and publication 
requirements under the Cordova Municipal Code 
Schaefer appreciated the memo and background on this – this makes it more flexible for us in case the 
local newspaper does suddenly go out of print, allows us to still meet our noticing requirements; she will 
support this. Carpenter agreed. 
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion was approved. 
17. Resolution 09-22-26 A resolution of the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing amendment 
to the FY22 budget in the amount of $591,340 in revenue and $512,099 in expenses 
M/Sherman S/Carpenter to approve Resolution 09-22-26 A resolution of the Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, authorizing amendment to the FY22 budget in the amount of $591,340 in revenue and 
$512,099 in expenses 
Sherman said these are all things we have already discussed; she appreciated the thorough memo from 
the manager – it is nice to see the actual revenues going up – she will support. Carpenter said ditto. Jones 
said he will support this – appreciates that we didn’t spend all the additional revenue. If we get even more 
revenue he’d like to see an effort to maybe put some back into the permanent fund. Schaefer said she will 
support. Guard said these are items that we have already expressed opinions on that we were supportive 
of. Bailer is in support. Meyer agreed, also supportive. 
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Guard-yes; Schaefer-yes; Jones-yes; Meyer-yes; Bailer-yes; 
Carpenter-yes; and Sherman-yes. Motion was approved. 
 
M. Unfinished Business – none 
 
N. New & Miscellaneous Business 

13



 

Reg Mtg Min 
September 7, 2022   
Page 4 of 5 

18. Council concurrence of Mayor’s Appointment to Harbor Commission 
M/Jones S/Bailer to concur with Mayor Allison’s appointment of Dave Glasen and Tommy Sheridan to 
the Harbor Commission. 
Sherman said there were a ton of very qualified candidates and she hopes in March 2023 there are a 
plethora of City Council candidates. She was glad to see the variety of people who were interested, and 
she hopes to see this trend continue. Mayor Allison wrote to each candidate who applied and expressed 
thanks to them – they were all highly qualified and he encouraged them to consider all the upcoming 
November Board and Commission vacancies.  
Vote on the motion: 7 yeas, 0 nays. Motion was approved. 
19. Council action on Disposal and Method of Disposal for a portion of ATS 220 
Mayor Allison mentioned that Guard was conflicted on this item so would not discuss or vote. 
M/Jones S/Sherman to dispose of the requested portion of ATS 220, Odiak Slough as outlined in Cordova 
Municipal Code 5.22.060 B by, 1. Negotiating an agreement with Dorne Hawxhurst and Jeff Guard to 
lease or purchase the property. 
Jones said this makes sense – adding a house in Cordova is a great use of the mud flat; this is a slam 
dunk – let’s grow the taxable pie. Sherman said it does make sense and considering the topography of 
the area – even though in the past we have tried to be consistent with putting land out for proposals as 
much as possible but this is a case - they are the only ones who can legally access the land. Bailer said 
he is totally in favor and echoes those comments. Schaefer, Carpenter, Meyer – all agreed.  
Vote on the motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 conflicted (Guard). Motion was approved. 
20. Pending Agenda, CIP List, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists 
Mayor Allison said that Kristin Carpenter, in her capacity as Executive Director of the PWSEDD has 
asked to be a Guest Speaker on 9/21/22. Schaefer mentioned that the Land Disposal Maps had been 
referred, can we do those now – after some discussion Council opted to wait until after the new year. 
There was discussion about changing Council seats to undesignated, initially we were gong to discuss 
again after the general election in November – now that we’ve been through a ranked choice election, do 
we want to address this sooner. After a little back and forth Council opted to wait until after the new year. 
 
O. Audience Participation 
Tommy Sheridan of 610 Spruce Street – he serves on the Alaska Mariculture Alliance, on their executive 
committee and there is a new ED, state has allocated $5 million as economic recovery. In the past several 
months – EVOSTC has allocated $32.8 million to mariculture in the spill affected region and USEDA has 
awarded $49 million to the AK mariculture cluster – he wants to acknowledge and thank Kristin and Helen 
for the PWSEDD’s role in getting that grant. Total value of what the Alaska Mariculture Cluster received is 
$65 million, including matching resources. There is a lot happening in this field and he will be involved if 
the Fisheries Committee gets revitalized as he is a member on that City committee – this will be important 
for our community’s economy into the future. There is another pending grant for $85 million with the 
USDA’s climate smart commodities program. He also thanked Council for the appointment to the Harbor 
Commission. 
 
P. Council Comments 
Meyer happy to move ahead with making land sales more transparent. Glad to see all the Harbor 
Commission applications. Welcomed the new Chief of Police, Andrew Goss. 
Schaefer also happy for all the Harbor Commission applicants, welcomed new staff, nice to have you. 
Sherman welcomed the new chief and gave kudos to staff and City Manager, for this packet. She reads 
the packet 3 times and makes a list of questions the first go around and then this time after three reads all 
questions were crossed out. She said the process for each item was made clear, fiscal notes included 
where necessary, just very helpful. 
Guard also welcomed the new chief. 
Carpenter welcomed chief, echoed comments about the packet, the applicants for HC. As far as election 
discussion, she was hoping to have just a short discussion on whether or not we want undesignated seats, 
not an entire Title 2 rewrite. 

14



 

Reg Mtg Min 
September 7, 2022   
Page 5 of 5 

Jones echoed comments about Chief, staff and HC. He’s glad we wound up with two new good 
commissioners and he looks forward to working on the Harbor Project with them. He generally supports 
undesignated seats per the conversation we had a few years ago.  
Bailer recently had an issue with a water line, and he praised the City water crew for their assistance, did 
a great job, helpful, professional, got the job done. The tidelands sale we approved tonight, years ago he 
tried to do that but it was state owned tidelands and he wondered if the City could try to work with the state 
to release some of their land to assist us in our housing shortage. He gave a few other examples of the 
City having stood in the way of development in the past. Current process might not be perfect, but it has 
been working.  
 
Q. Executive Session – none 
 
R. Adjournment  
M/Guard S/Bailer to adjourn the meeting. 
Hearing no objection Mayor Allison adjourned the meeting at 8:11 pm. 
 
Approved: September 21, 2022  
 
    
 
 

Attest:  ____________________________________ 
 Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk  

15



AGENDA ITEM 6 
City Council Meeting Date:  9/21/2022 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

FROM: Paul Trumblee, Fire Marshal 

DATE: 9/13/2022 

ITEM: ARPA Fund, Fire PPE  

NEXT STEP:   Council authorizes the City Manager to negotiate this contract 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____ ORDINANCE   _____ RESOLUTION 
__X__ MOTION   _____ INFORMATION 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  This form constitutes the memorandum required per Code per 5.12.040 
setting forth the following: 

A.  Identity of Contractor: Envirosafety/ Public Safety Center 
B.  Contract Price:    $41,991.52 
C.  Nature & quantity of the work that the City shall receive under the contract: 

To provide new firefighting personal protective equipment (Fire PPE) 

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: Council suggested motion “to direct the City
Manager to negotiate a contract with lowest quote to Envirosafety/Public Safety Center, to purchase, 
23 sets of Fire PPE for a sum not to exceed Forty-One Thousand, Nine Hundred Ninety-One Dollars 
and 52 cents ($41,991.52)”. 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: The contract will be paid from 335-420-55000 ARPA funding of which
Council approved $40,000 for new PPE. The lowest bid came in $1,991.52 higher that what was 
previously approved by council.  

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Requests for proposals were made to a number of vendors
and City received two quotes, one for 57,123.60 for 20 sets not including shipping, and the second one 
for $41,991.52 for 23 sets including shipping. Department selected the lowest quote which also 
provides for 3 more sets. These new Fire PPE will replace 10–12-year-old Fire PPE purchased under a 
State Homeland Security Grant.    

V. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: Council could choose not to approve the contract. 

16



5.12.040 - Council approval of contracts. 
No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than twenty-
five thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth 
the following essential terms of the contract: 

A. The identity of the contractor;  

B. The contract price;  

C. The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract; 
and  

D. The time for performance under the contract. 

(Ord. 1019 § 1, 2008: Ord. 874, 2000: Ord. 809 (part), 1998). 

(Ord. No. 1093, § 1, 1-4-2012) 

17



AGENDA ITEM 7 
City Council Meeting Date:  9/21/2022 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
____________________________________________________________________________________

FROM: Paul Trumblee, Fire Marshal   

DATE: 9/13/2022 

ITEM: ARPA Fund, Snowplow for Emergency Vehicle 

NEXT STEP:   Council authorizes the City Manager to negotiate this contract 
____________________________________________________________________________________

_____ ORDINANCE   _____ RESOLUTION 
__X__ MOTION   _____ INFORMATION 

____________________________________________________________________________________

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:  This form constitutes the memorandum required per Code per 5.12.040 
setting forth the following: 

A.  Identity of Contractor: Trailer Craft of Anchorage 
B.  Contract Price:    $10,200.00 
C.  Nature & quantity of the work that the City shall receive under the contract: 

To provide a Snowplow and Install for an Emergency Vehicle 

II. RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: Council suggested motion “to direct the City
Manager to negotiate a contract with lowest quote to Trailer Craft of Anchorage, to purchase a 
snowplow for an Emergency Vehicle not to exceed Ten Thousand Two Hundred dollars.  ($10,200) 
not including travel costs. 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: The contract will be paid from 335-420-55000 ARPA funding and was
approved by council. 

IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: This Dept. reached out to multiple vendors, received two (2)
quotes, one for $10,200.00 with installation and the second quote for $11,177.00 with installation. This 
equipment will improve emergency service response during the winter months for the whole community. 

V. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: Council could choose not to approve the contract.  

18



5.12.040 - Council approval of contracts. 
No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than twenty-
five thousand dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth 
the following essential terms of the contract: 

A. The identity of the contractor;  

B. The contract price;  

C. The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract; 
and  

D. The time for performance under the contract. 

(Ord. 1019 § 1, 2008: Ord. 874, 2000: Ord. 809 (part), 1998). 

(Ord. No. 1093, § 1, 1-4-2012) 

19



 
 
 

DATE  EVENT 

10/14/2022    Dept.’s deadline to submit written explanation of additional personnel,  
  wage increases, fee changes, and significant changes in operation budgets to City Manager. 

10/21/2022    1st Draft of FY2022 Budget and related Documents to Council  

10/26/2022 Council Work Session   Initial review of FY2022 Budget and related documents 

11/2/2022 Council Work Session   Ongoing discussion and review of FY2022 budget. 

11/9/2022 Council Work Session   Ongoing discussion and review of FY2022 budget. 

11/16/2022 Regular Meeting   Ongoing discussion and review of FY2022 budget. 

11/30/2022    Publication of proposed FY2022 Budget and FY2022 Fee schedule. 

12/7/2022 Regular Meeting   Public Hearing and Adoption of FY2022 Budget and FY2022 Fee schedule. 

 

FY23 BUDGET SCHEDULE 

20



CITY OF CORDOVA

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2022

GENERAL FUND

PY ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

REVENUE

TAXES 4,570,743.13 5,351,990.79 7,216,685.00 1,864,694.21 74.2

LICENSES & PERMITS 705.00 1,785.00 21,000.00 19,215.00 8.5

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL 981,541.37 1,020,458.26 2,969,336.00 1,948,877.74 34.4

LEASES & RENTS 186,718.50 212,201.73 278,718.00 66,516.27 76.1

LAW ENFORCEMENT 143,342.86 186,306.62 293,804.00 107,497.38 63.4

D. M. V. 45,478.32 43,300.29 60,700.00 17,399.71 71.3

PLANNING 7,560.00 3,870.00 6,500.00 2,630.00 59.5

RECREATION 39,563.03 75,981.74 64,000.00 (      11,981.74) 118.7

POOL 8,371.50 13,516.43 15,000.00 1,483.57 90.1

SALE OF PROPERTY 1,050.00 11,783.55 3,000.00 (       8,783.55) 392.8

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 425,442.72 .00 749,827.00 749,827.00 .0

OTHER REVENUE 57,909.71 60,262.57 115,718.00 55,455.43 52.1

STATE DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSME .00 2,022,113.00 378,000.00 (     1,644,113.00) 535.0

6,468,426.14 9,003,569.98 12,172,288.00 3,168,718.02 74.0

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 4,107.19 3,705.76 5,300.00 1,594.24 69.9

CITY CLERK 203,180.84 291,162.62 307,561.00 16,398.38 94.7

CITY MAYOR 244.00 50.00 1,500.00 1,450.00 3.3

CITY MANAGER 154,690.12 287,227.18 499,728.00 212,500.82 57.5

FINANCE 341,640.82 367,275.51 481,578.00 114,302.49 76.3

PLANNING 84,184.41 88,731.39 148,840.00 60,108.61 59.6

PLANNING COMMISSION 718.21 995.86 1,500.00 504.14 66.4

DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES 53,677.37 51,258.37 35,259.00 (      15,999.37) 145.4

LAW ENFORCEMENT 628,184.30 696,429.61 1,121,684.00 425,254.39 62.1

JAIL OPERATIONS 152,359.40 182,984.97 278,815.00 95,830.03 65.6

FIRE & EMS 228,211.58 306,152.39 507,272.00 201,119.61 60.4

DISASTER MANAGEMENT 10,272.55 7,739.92 11,000.00 3,260.08 70.4

LIBRARY 485,287.30 401,385.51 810,775.00 409,389.49 49.5

FACILITY UTILITIES 127,820.10 141,127.48 178,600.00 37,472.52 79.0

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION 119,794.49 122,861.88 200,745.00 77,883.12 61.2

FACILITY  MAINTENANCE 234,131.57 242,937.89 377,783.00 134,845.11 64.3

STREET MAINTENANCE 388,850.81 366,762.91 814,124.00 447,361.09 45.1

SNOW REMOVAL 30,505.64 47,279.88 71,494.00 24,214.12 66.1

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 234,092.85 215,380.35 352,391.00 137,010.65 61.1

PARKS MAINTENANCE 67,725.34 112,771.37 260,476.00 147,704.63 43.3

CEMETERY MAINTENANCE 1,036.21 1,929.30 6,695.00 4,765.70 28.8

PARKS & REC ADMINISTRATION .00 48,096.67 229,505.00 181,408.33 21.0

RECREATION - BIDARKI 167,389.12 151,556.92 193,326.00 41,769.08 78.4

RECREATION - SWIMMING POOL 173,757.25 261,067.06 286,893.00 25,825.94 91.0

SKI HILL 31,058.22 135,046.23 102,118.00 (      32,928.23) 132.3

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 313,775.24 462,900.69 961,226.00 498,325.31 48.2

LONG TERM DEBT SERVICE 520,437.50 437,062.50 1,715,100.00 1,278,037.50 25.5

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 149,549.00 .00 .00 .00 .0

TRANSFERS TO OTHER ENTITIES 1,427,679.98 1,779,413.84 2,211,000.00 431,586.16 80.5

6,334,361.41 7,211,294.06 12,172,288.00 4,960,993.94 59.2

134,064.73 1,792,275.92 .00 (     1,792,275.92) .0

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/16/2022     11:01AM       
21



CITY OF CORDOVA

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING AUGUST 31, 2022

PY ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  09/16/2022     11:01AM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

101 GENERAL FUND 6,468,426.14 9,003,569.98 12,172,288.00 3,168,718.02 74.0

104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 636,806.83 (     1,406,290.90) 424,900.00 1,831,190.90 (331.0)

203 FIRE DEPT. VEHICLE ACQUISITION 18,903.63 40,179.62 .00 (      40,179.62) .0

205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 471.00 50.00 .00 (     50.00) .0

333 COVID-19 120,797.00 15,389.59 .00 (      15,389.59) .0

335 ARPA - CLFRF 261,789.89 929,703.65 .00 (       929,703.65) .0

401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 425,048.26 148,376.97 .00 (       148,376.97) .0

502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 1,265,992.33 1,267,921.03 1,667,122.00 399,200.97 76.1

503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 563,349.82 616,603.04 909,323.00 292,719.96 67.8

504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 625,141.07 571,049.44 840,758.00 269,708.56 67.9

505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 789,924.28 856,713.42 1,381,382.00 524,668.58 62.0

506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 18,317.64 37,786.24 68,280.00 30,493.76 55.3

654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT 13,850.00 .00 .00 .00 .0

702 HARBOR RESERVE FUND 297,121.47 256,073.77 325,000.00 68,926.23 78.8

703 SEWER RESERVE FUND 50,000.00 .00 295,000.00 295,000.00 .0

704 WATER RESERVE FUND 30,000.00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

705 REFUSE RESERVE FUND 50,000.00 .00 260,000.00 260,000.00 .0

805 LANDFILL CLOSURE RESERVE FUND 50,145.57 145.65 50,000.00 49,854.35 .3

810 HEALTH INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 643,220.10 736,993.58 .00 (       736,993.58) .0

12,329,305.03 13,074,265.08 18,444,053.00 5,369,787.92 70.9

EXPENDITURES

101 GENERAL FUND 6,334,361.41 7,211,294.06 12,172,288.00 4,960,993.94 59.2

104 CITY PERMANENT FUND .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

203 FIRE DEPT. VEHICLE ACQUISITION 2,833.70 2,543.72 .00 (       2,543.72) .0

205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 1,792.63 3,524.01 .00 (       3,524.01) .0

333 COVID-19 237,469.16 17,583.46 .00 (      17,583.46) .0

335 ARPA - CLFRF .00 112,504.04 .00 (       112,504.04) .0

336 LSTA GRANTS .00 55,142.21 .00 (      55,142.21) .0

401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 372,202.52 277,169.44 .00 (       277,169.44) .0

502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 1,086,100.94 642,066.38 1,730,730.00 1,088,663.62 37.1

503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 587,763.94 408,702.29 1,784,493.00 1,375,790.71 22.9

504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 527,636.38 432,301.80 1,040,534.00 608,232.20 41.6

505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 759,837.78 460,021.83 1,665,627.00 1,205,605.17 27.6

506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 43,372.96 20,460.13 68,280.00 47,819.87 30.0

654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT 17,720.50 .00 .00 .00 .0

655 ACWF#261171-S LOAN MILE17 EQU .00 717,056.94 .00 (       717,056.94) .0

702 HARBOR RESERVE FUND .00 248,184.90 .00 (       248,184.90) .0

703 SEWER RESERVE FUND 54,879.99 316,414.19 245,000.00 (      71,414.19) 129.2

704 WATER RESERVE FUND 28,180.35 5,170.65 300,000.00 294,829.35 1.7

705 REFUSE RESERVE FUND .00 .00 210,000.00 210,000.00 .0

810 HEALTH INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 895,228.16 898,960.21 .00 (       898,960.21) .0

10,949,380.42 11,829,100.26 19,316,952.00 7,487,851.74 61.2

1,379,924.61 1,245,164.82 (       872,899.00) (     2,118,063.82) 142.7

22



 
 

 

Council Packet Correspondence Primer: 
Communicating with Your Elected Cordova Officials 

 
This primer provides an overview of City of Cordova policies regarding the submission of correspondence 
to the City Clerk’s office for distribution to City Council. These policies are general in nature and do not 
preempt the application of relevant laws to correspondence distribution. To the extent you have questions 
regarding the distribution of specific correspondence, please contact the City Clerk’s office. 
 
What gets published in Council packets as Correspondence? 
 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail addressed to City Council, any individual 
member of City Council or the Mayor, regardless of whether or not the sender has requested inclusion of 
the correspondence in a City Council packet. 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail written by the Mayor, individual City Council 
members in their capacity as elected officials, or the Council as a body  

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail by agencies/entities that are pertinent to 
Council and the citizens of Cordova (e.g. population determination, full value determination, open 
comment periods for projects/leases in and around Cordova, etc.) 

• Only correspondence received by the Clerk’s Office on or before noon on the Wednesday before a regular 
Council meeting is eligible for inclusion in the packet for that meeting. Correspondence eligible for 
inclusion received after that date and time will be included in the next regularly scheduled Council 
meeting packet. (See CMC 3.12.035). 

 
What does not get published in Council packets as Correspondence? 
 

• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that are disparaging to individuals or entities 
• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that have been sent anonymously 
• Letters, emails, cards, or other written or electronic mail that contain confidential information or 

information that would warrant a constitutional violation of privacy or could potentially violate an 
individual’s or an entity’s constitutional rights. 

 
More information about items not subject to publication: 
 

• Correspondence that is not subject to publication in a Council packet will, however, be forwarded to the 
Mayor and City Council members with notification that the communication will not be included in the 
Council packet and the reasons for the exclusion.   

• The City will attempt to contact the writer of the correspondence to inform them that the City has 
determined not to publish what they have sent. Notifications will be sent to the return address on the 
communication if one has been provided. (the best way to ensure the City is able to reach the writer is if 
the correspondence has been emailed through the City Clerk cityclerk@cityofcordova.net) 

• A person who submits a communication that is not subject to publication in a Council packet, may still 
attend a meeting and read the communication during audience comments (if it is about an agenda item) 
or during audience participation, if it is not about an agenda item. Oral comments during a Council 
meeting will not be monitored or limited for content unless the comments made incite or promote 
violence against a person or entity. The City is not responsible or liable for the comments, thoughts, 
and/or opinions expressed by individuals during the public comment period at a Council meeting.   

 
Suggestions concerning correspondence: 
 

• Correspondence intended for all Council members should be emailed to the City Clerk at 
cityclerk@cityofcordova.net, hand-delivered or sent via U.S. mail to the Clerk’s office. Correspondence 
should be clearly addressed to “Cordova City Council.” Unless clearly stated otherwise, the City Clerk will 
presume that all correspondence addressed to City Council is intended for inclusion in the packet. 

23

mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net
mailto:cityclerk@cityofcordova.net


24



25



26



27



1

Susan Bourgeois

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

James Burton <> Friday, September 2, 
2022 6:52 PM Susan Bourgeois
Re: Kelp farms

This is especially important if we see a continued resurgence of herring in PWS and maintain a biomass above fishery 
thresholds.  

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 

On Friday, September 2, 2022, 6:37 PM, James Burton <> wrote: 

It is my sincere hope that council will consult with fishermen and ADFG when mariculture permits are 
brought to the review process.  

The latest proposal submitted by Anya Honkola is in the middle of prime, productive commercial fishing 
locations. It’s a place I fish routinely and vehemently disagree with as a location for kelp.  

I have nothing against the proposer, only the location.  

Please direct staff to express disapproval of this location.  

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 

28



1

Susan Bourgeois

From: Helen Howarth
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 11:41 AM
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: FW: LAS 34230 - Agency Review - Land use permit application received for the placement of research 

kelp array in Sheep Bay
Attachments: SheepBay_NVEnewsite_detailed.jpeg; NVE_newsite_detailed.jpg; SheepBay_NVEnewsite.jpeg; FW_ 

PERMIT ARP P-22-022.pdf; LAS 34230 - Village of Eyak - Agency Review Document updated 
location.pdf; LAS 34230 - Village of Eyak - LUP app 2022 program summary updated location FOR 
NOTICE 9.1.2022.pdf; LAS 34230 - Village of Eyak - LUP app 2022 FOR NOTICE.pdf; NVE_newsite.csv

 
 

From: Szemborski, Zachary R (DNR) <zachary.szemborski@alaska.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 11:24 AM 
Subject: LAS 34230 ‐ Agency Review ‐ Land use permit application received for the placement of research kelp array in 
Sheep Bay 
 

Good Morning, 
 
Please find the agency review notice below. Please be aware that the location in the application has been 
amended. The updated location is denoted in the attached images and the attached program summary. If there 
are any other questions, please let me know. 

 
AGENCY REVIEW NOTICE 

LAS 34230 
NATIVE VILLAGE OF EYAK 

 
Subject to AS 38.05.850, the Southcentral Regional Land Office has received an application for 
the following: 
 
APPLICANT: NATIVE VILLAGE OF EYAK 
 
PROJECT NAME: LAS 34230 
 
GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION: 

Located within Prince William Sound, along the southern coast of Sheep Bay. 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  
Section 19 of Township 14 South, Range 5 West, Copper River Meridian 
Section 24 of Township 14 South, Range 4 West, Copper River Meridian 
 

REQUESTED ACTIVITY: 
The yearlong placement of a macroalgal cultivation rig (MACR) kelp array for the 

purpose of researching kelp growth in Sheep Bay. The entire array is expected to occupy a 
surface area no greater than a 10-foot by 1700-foot section. The array will consist of a single 
main line, with stabilizing buoys running the length of the array in addition to 4 buoys marking 

29



2

the 4 anchors made of iron train wheels. 250 to 500 vertical seeded lines will be connected to the 
single main line. 

 

PROPOSED DATES OF USE:  
Start: September 19, 2022 
End: August 31, 2027 
 

DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS: September 19, 2022 
 

You are invited to review the enclosed Land Use Permit application materials.  Please direct any 
questions or comments you may have to Zachary Szemborski, zachary.szemborski@alaska.gov, 
or the above address.  You need not respond if you do not have any comments.  The purpose of 
this notice is to gather input before a decision is made on the proposed activity. 
 

After review and adjudication, we may issue a permit with stipulations for the activity.  The 
activity may be modified during the review and adjudication process. 
 

Zachary Szemborski 
Natural Resource Specialist 2 
(907)269-8568 

 
Distribution List: 
 DNR Office of History & Archaeology 
 DNR Land Sales 
 Division of Oil & Gas 
 USACE 
 US Fish & Wildlife Service  
 EPA 
 DNR Land Sales 
 Fish and Game Habitat Southcentral 
 DNR State Parks Permitting 
 Alaska Department of Transportation 
 SAIL 
 DEC Agency Reviews 
 DNR-DMLW-Realty Services 
 ADF&G 
 DEC Agency Reviews 
 Cordova City Manager 
 City of Cordova 
 Chugach National Forest 

30



ADNR_0421466 Agency Review Notice 
Prepared Date: September 1, 2022 

Department of Natural Resources 
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND & WATER 

Southcentral Regional Land Office 

550 W. 7th Ave., Suite 900C 
Anchorage, Alaska 99501-3577 

Main: (907) 269-8503 
TTY: 711 or 880.770.8973 

Fax: (907) 269-8913 

AGENCY REVIEW NOTICE 
LAS 34230 

NATIVE VILLAGE OF EYAK 

Subject to AS 38.05.850, the Southcentral Regional Land Office has received an application for 
the following: 

APPLICANT: NATIVE VILLAGE OF EYAK 

PROJECT NAME: LAS 34230 

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION: 
Located within Prince William Sound, along the southern coast of Sheep Bay. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
Section 19 of Township 14 South, Range 5 West, Copper River Meridian 
Section 24 of Township 14 South, Range 4 West, Copper River Meridian 

REQUESTED ACTIVITY: 
The yearlong placement of a macroalgal cultivation rig (MACR) kelp array for the 

purpose of researching kelp growth in Sheep Bay. The entire array is expected to occupy a 
surface area no greater than a 10-foot by 1700-foot section. The array will consist of a single 
main line, with stabilizing buoys running the length of the array in addition to 4 buoys marking 
the 4 anchors made of iron train wheels. 250 to 500 vertical seeded lines will be connected to the 
single main line. 

PROPOSED DATES OF USE: 
Start: September 19, 2022 
End: August 31, 2027 

DEADLINE FOR COMMENTS: September 21, 2022 

You are invited to review the enclosed Land Use Permit application materials.  Please direct any 
questions or comments you may have to Zachary Szemborski, zachary.szemborski@alaska.gov, 
or the above address.  You need not respond if you do not have any comments.  The purpose of 
this notice is to gather input before a decision is made on the proposed activity. 
After review and adjudication, we may issue a permit with stipulations for the activity.  The 
activity may be modified during the review and adjudication process. 

Zachary Szemborski 
Natural Resource Specialist 2 
(907)269-8568

31



 
LAS 34230 

ADNR_0421466 Agency Review 
Prepared Date: September 1, 2022   Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Distribution List: 
• DNR Office of History & Archaeology 
• DNR Land Sales 
• Division of Oil & Gas 
• USACE 
• US Fish & Wildlife Service  
• EPA 
• DNR Land Sales 
• Fish and Game Habitat Southcentral 
• DNR State Parks Permitting 
• Alaska Department of Transportation 
• SAIL 
• DEC Agency Reviews 
• DNR-DMLW-Realty Services 
• ADF&G 
• DEC Agency Reviews 
• Cordova City Manager 
• City of Cordova 
• Chugach National Forest 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



Native Village of Eyak 
Department of the Environment & Natural Resources 
110 Nicholoff Way | P.O. Box 1388 
Cordova, Alaska 99574-1388 

www.eyak-nsn.gov 

10,000 years in our Traditional Homeland, Prince William Sound, Copper River Delta, and the Gulf of Alaska 

Native Village of Eyak Kelp Mariculture Research Program Summary 

Statement of the Problem and Introduction  

The farming of kelp in the natural marine environment, or kelp mariculture, requires no 

arable land, fertilizers, irrigation, or tilling. Kelp mariculture provides numerous ecosystem 

services including carbon sequestration (Kaladharan et al. 2009, Krause-Jensen and Duarte 

2016), habitat enhancement for economically valuable fish and shellfish (Pfister et al. 2019, 

Visch et al. 2020), and reduces ocean acidification impacts due to increasing levels of 

atmospheric CO2 dissolving into the water column (Duarte et al. 2017). In the Prince William 

Sound (PWS), several challenges remain to grow kelp in the most environmentally sustainable 

and cost-effective manner possible. Research into these areas is a must for this sector to expand 

into a $20 million industry that the State would like to achieve in the next few decades. 

Currently, the aquatic farm permits in our region are located in the eastern portion of 

PWS in Simpson, Sheep, and Windy Bay. Location selection has focused more on protecting 

farmers’ investments in catenary arrays rather than on water quality and the suitability of the 

sites to produce kelp. Sheltered areas are prime locations that protect farms from swift water 

currents, severe weather, and high wave action but may not be suitable habitat to effectively 

cultivate large quantities of seaweed. For example, icing at the shallow protected head of one bay 

where a local farm is located resulted in the failure of an entire bull kelp crop. The farm’s array 

was impeded, but no equipment was lost.  

Farm sites such as these are also close to the processing hub of Cordova, which reduces 

costs associated with farm maintenance and transportation of harvested kelp. Many other 

61

http://www.eyak-nsn.gov/


NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

2 | REVISED September 2022 

prospective locations closer to Cordova exist in Orca Inlet but are exposed to potentially 

damaging ocean conditions including high currents, exposure to winter storms, and deep waters 

(>50 m). During the kelp growing season, PWS regularly experiences winter storms and 

blizzards with sustained winds up to 50 kts (gusts up to 75 kts) several times a month. As this 

industry expands, the only possibilities for protected farms both financially and spatially will be 

located further and further from hub communities like Cordova. This will result in increased 

costs associated with travel to farms sites for maintenance and the transportation of harvests to 

processors, which will reduce the financial viability of these farms and increase greenhouse gas 

emissions. There is a need in PWS for kelp cultivation systems that are durable enough to stand 

up to our harsh environmental conditions closer to town. 

An alternative method to growing kelp developed in the Faroe Islands produces up to five 

times more biomass per acre in areas where the common catenary arrays cannot be installed due 

to high physical stress (Bak et al. 2018, Bak 2019). The Macroalgal Cultivation Rig (MACR) has 

been in use for more than 10 years. This array has shown great success and dependability when 

exposed to wind conditions up to 90 mph and wave heights of six meters because the rig mimics 

the natural movement of kelp in the water column (Bak et al. 2018). These MACR arrays grow 

more kelp per square foot than the catenary arrays currently in use locally. Kelp is grown 

vertically in the water column as opposed to horizontally only at the surface as seen in shallow 

water catenary arrays. The MACR has not been tested in PWS or Alaska so provides an 

opportunity to research how suitable this method is in the context of biomass production, cost, 

and ecosystem services provided. Successful demonstration of this array will set an example for 

other interested kelp farms to grow kelp in more exposed locations closer to Cordova in deep 

water. Further oceanographic research to assess the environmental impacts of this method are 

62



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

3 | REVISED September 2022 

also important to quantify what environmental benefits and ecosystem services this technique 

can contribute to the Sound. 

Our objectives for this permit are to 1) collect sori tissue from native sugar kelp 

(Saccharina latissima) and ribbon kelp (Alaria marginata) within 50 km of the research farm site 

in August 2022 with NVE’s Mariculture Tribal Youth Training Program, 2) research and 

demonstrate a reliable and durable method to efficiently cultivate kelp in a deeper more exposed 

location, and 3) measure and quantify the ecosystem services the MACR provides through the 

upcoming Mariculture ReCon program, a 10 year program funded through the Exxon Valdez Oil 

Spill Trustee Council to research mariculture’s effects on the environment.  

Research Plan 

Site Selection 

The MACR is designed to withstand exposure to rough waters and windy conditions in 

deep waters (> 50m) with high surface currents (Bak et al. 2018, Bak 2019). In the Faroe Islands, 

these cultivation rigs are deployed in 50-70 m of water with currents of 15-25 cm s-1 and 

significant wave heights of 3-6 m. Like here in PWS, the location of the Faroe Island farms 

experience +100 kph winds regularly during the growing season. For a site comparable to these 

conditions in our region, we used the following criteria: 

1. Southern-facing site to maximize sun exposure throughout the growing season

2. Exposure to physical stressors including wind and wave action

3. Low turbidity for light penetration at depth

4. Relatively close to Cordova to reduce fuel consumption

5. Does not impede navigation.

63



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

4 | REVISED September 2022 

These criteria omit large portions of Eastern PWS near Cordova. The western portion of Orca 

Inlet from Boswell Bay to Cordova is too shallow and turbid for mariculture practices due to 

sedimentary inputs from the Copper River. Much of the eastern part of Orca Inlet near Cordova 

to the head of Nelson Bay receives additional inputs of sediment from the Rude River resulting 

in highly turbid water with little light penetration below the surface of the water column. 

Simpson Bay is sheltered from wind and wave action and currently contains eight aquatic farm 

leases comprising approximately 137.7 acres.  

An exposed site off the southeastern coast of Sheep Bay (Fig. 1, Fig. 2) has been selected to 

test the efficacy of the MACR. This site is 0.28 miles (44 km, 1457 ft, 486 yds) east of an 

unnamed anadromous creek (AWC: 221-20-10290) and 15.7 nm from Cordova requiring only a 

4-minute commute. Access to the farm site will be by boat from Cordova.

Sori Collection 

Sugar and ribbon kelp sori tissue for sporophyte production will be collected by NVE’s 

tribal youth mariculture program from local (within 50 km of the Sheep Bay site) wild kelp 

forests in August 2022. Several potential locations of wild kelp beds to be sampled include 

Simpson Bay, Sheep Bay, Cedar Bay, Double Bay, and Orca Inlet in Prince William Sound. 

NVE’s Department of the Environment and Natural Resources staff along with NVE’s 

Family Services staff will assist four tribal youth (high school age) in identifying and collecting 

sori via snorkeling. Sori tissue not immediately available within snorkeling depth will be 

obtained via scuba diving by NVE’s Subsistence Department. Once 50-75 sori producing thalli 

from each species are collected, these samples will be sent to the Alutiiq Pride Marine Institute 

for sporophyte cultivation. The resulting seed line produced by APMI will be attached to the 

64



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

5 | REVISED September 2022 

MACR array in late September/early October 2022 to determine the suitability of this kelp 

cultivation method in PWS. 

Equipment 

The diagram (Fig. 3) shows the components of the 1000-1600 ft MACR array that will be 

deployed by the Native Village of Eyak’s Department of the Environment and Natural Resources 

with the aid of Ocean Rainforest in September 2022. This array will occupy less than 0.5 acre of 

surface water in an area 10 ft by 1700 ft. A series of buoys suspending this linear array will be 

visible on at the surface to clearly mark the farm’s boundary for navigation. Each end of the 

MACR will be attached to a mooring buoy. The system will be situated such that it is 

perpendicular to the prevailing water currents to ensure vertical grow lines do not become 

entangled and that each grow line receives maximum water flow and exposure (see Fig. 2). 

Two mooring buoys on each end of the MACR will connect the main line of the MACR 

to the anchor system. Two anchors will be attached on each end for a total of four anchor 

systems. Each anchor will be comprised of four stacked iron train wheels attached to iron anchor 

chain. Anchor buoys will be attached to each anchor to mark the location of anchors. Anchors 

and tackle will have a scope of 3:1 based on water depth. Stabilizing buoys will be attached to 

the mainline. Buoy placement, position, and number may change based on the vertical position 

of the mainline in the water column. More buoys may be attached if the main line sinks below 3-

6 ft. Anchor locations will be determined based on how currents and wave action affect the 

MACR. Because of this, a generous anchor radius on each end of the MACR parcel (Fig. 2, Fig. 

4) has been defined. Only a very small portion of the area outlined will be occupied by the four

anchors and tackle. 

65



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

 

6 | REVISED September 2022 

 

Off the horizontal main line, 250-500 vertical seeded grow lines 20-30 ft in length will be 

attached in late September/early October. Each grow line will be spaced 3-6 ft apart. The MACR 

will have the potential to grow 7,500-15,000 ft of seeded kelp lines. Seeded lines will grow 

throughout the fall, winter, and spring when kelp will be harvested.  

Dismantle, Removal, Restoration Plan 

Dismantling the suspended farm array requires minimal contact or impacts to the site and 

will leave the area in a clean, safe condition. No permanent structures are proposed on the site. 

Line and buoys will be removed from the water at the expiration of this permit. The charter 

operators hired to install the anchors will remove them when no longer in use at the research site. 

When not in use, all gear and anchors associated with the MACR will be stored on private 

property (ex: Prince William Sound Marina) owned by NVE in Cordova, AK. This project will 

not store any solid or hazardous wastes at the MACR parcel. 

Harvested Kelp 

Kelp harvest will depend on environmental and kelp quality conditions but will take 

place late April through May. A portion of this harvest will be used to assess the carbon removal 

capacity of cultivated kelp (see below). 

There is a pivotal need to establish a stable market for kelp in PWS that uses low-tech 

processing methods with the capacity to process high volumes of kelp into a shelf-stable product. 

The largest market for kelp in North America is currently kelp fertilizers and livestock feed 

(McKinley 2020). Kelp supplemented livestock feed has the added benefit of reducing methane 

emissions by cattle by more than 80% (Kinley et al. 2020, Maia et al. 2016, Lean et al. 2021). 

Ensiling kelp for this market requires little energy (no freezing or drying) or processing costs. 

66



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

 

7 | REVISED September 2022 

 

We will process a small portion of the harvested kelp using a lactic acid fermentation technique 

to research the feasibility of establishing a livestock feed production line in Cordova. 

Research Program 

 To assess the effectiveness of the MACR in Sheep Bay, NVE will measure the amount of 

kelp biomass produced using the methods of Bak et al. 2018. Briefly, measurements of kelp 

growth will be based on the length of the kelp thallus measured from the tip of the thallus to the 

grow line. Growth will be measured monthly from planting (September/October) to harvest 

(April/May) weather permitting. Overall biomass (kg) per meter harvested will also be calculated 

by dividing the biomass produced by the cumulative length of grow lines seeded. These yield 

data will be compared with other cultivation techniques used in Simpson Bay and Windy Bay to 

understand how efficiently the MACR produced kelp compared to the horizontal catenary arrays. 

The NVE Mariculture Program is a partner on the Exxon Valdez Oil Spill Trustee 

Council funded Mariculture Research and Restoration Consortium (Mariculture ReCon) 

administered by the Prince William Sound Science Center. This program will “support 

restoration, habitat enhancement, and economic development through research and partnerships 

between scientists and seaweed and shellfish farmers.” NVE’s research farm will provide 

Mariculture ReCon the platform to research the capacity of kelp mariculture to remove carbon 

from the water column.  

NVE will collect kelp tissue and seawater samples for analysis of carbon content and 

removal capacity as a function of dry weight and yields. Our partner, Dr. Schery Umanzor, lead 

of the Mariculture Lab at the University of Alaska Fairbanks in Juneau has pioneered a 

straightforward and cost-effective toolkit for farmers for this purpose. The Nutrient Extraction 

Toolkit (NET ©) supplies farmers with the equipment and instructions to collect kelp tissue and 

67



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

 

8 | REVISED September 2022 

 

seawater samples quickly and accurately during three critical growing periods (i.e., 0, 30, and 60 

days) before harvest. Tissue and water samples collected by farmers will be sent to the 

Mariculture Lab where they will be prepared for processing and determination of nutrient 

content. To this end, kelp tissue is dried, ground, and encapsulated for combustion to determine 

the percentage of C per unit of tissue dry weight. Yields per meter and the percentage of tissue C 

are used to calculate the overall C removal capacity per farm. Water samples are analyzed to 

determine the concentration of nitrate, nitrate, ammonium, phosphate, and silica used as 

indicators to evaluate potential differences in farm yields. 

Results will provide basic information that would allow estimating how carbon fluxes 

may vary from one farm to another depending on the farm design. The data derived from this 

research can be applied to other farms in PWS, providing a model that can estimate CO2 capture 

in other areas across PWS, allowing for a region-wide estimation of CO2 sequestration. In 

addition, outcomes from this study will complement current project efforts by the University of 

Alaska Fairbanks focused on creating pathways for a simplified and systematic tissue and water 

collection protocols to support revenue systems of eventual carbon trading markets. 

We are currently in the permitting process for this program with the Alaska Department 

of Fish and Game for an aquatic resources permit and the United States Army Corp of Engineers 

for the equipment proposed here. 

  

68



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

9 | REVISED September 2022 

Citations 

Bak, U.G., Mols-Mortensen, A., and O. Gregersen. 2018. Production methods and cost of 

commercial-scale offshore cultivation of kelp in the Faroe Islands using multiple partial 

harvesting. Algal Research. 33:36-47pgs. 

Bak, U.G. 2019. Seaweed cultivation in the Faroe Islands: An investigation of the biochemical 

composition of selected macroalgal species, optimized seeding technics, and open-ocean 

cultivation methods from a commercial perspective. Technical University of Denmark. 

Duarte, C.M., Wu, J., Xiao, X., Bruhn, A. and Krause-Jensen, D. 2017. Can Seaweed Farming 

Play a Role in Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation? Frontiers in Marine Science. 

4:100 pgs. doi: 10.3389/fmars.2017.00100. 

Kaladharan, P., Veena, S., and E. Vivekanandan. 2009. Carbon sequestration by a few marine 

algae: observation and projection. Journal of the Marine Biological Association of India. 

51: 107-110 pgs. 

Kinley, R.D., Martinez-Fernandez, G., Matthews, M.K., de Nys, R., Magnusson, M., and N.W. 

Tomkins. 2020. Mitigating the carbon footprint and improving productivity of ruminant 

livestock agriculture using a red seaweed. Journal of Cleaner Production. 259: 120836. 

Krause-Jensen, D. and C. M. Duarte. 2016. Substantial role of macroalgae in marine carbon 

sequestration. Nature Geoscience. 9:737-742pgs. 

Lean, I.J., Golder, H.M., Grant, T.M.D., and P.J. Moate. 2021. A meta-analysis of effects of 

dietary seaweed on beef and dairy cattle performance and methane yield. Public Library 

of Science One (PLoS One). 16: e0249053. 

Maia, M.R.G., Fonseca, A.J.M., Oliveira, H.M., Mendonca, C., and A.R.J. Cabrita. 2016. The 

Potential Role of Seaweeds in the Natural Manipulation of Rumen Fermentation and 

Methane Production. Scientific Reports. 6: 32321. 

McKinley Research. 2021. Alaska Seaweed Market Assessment. 

Pfister, C. A., M. A. Altabet, and B. L. Weigel. 2019. Kelp beds and their local effects on 

seawater chemistry, productivity, and microbial communities. Ecology. 100:e02798. 

10.1002/ecy.2798 

Visch, W., Bergstrom, P., Nylund, G.M., Peterson, M., Pavia, H., and M. Lindegarth. 2020. 

Spatial differences in growth rate and nutrient mitigation of two co-cultivated, extractive 

species: The blue mussel (Mytilus edulis) and the kelp (Saccharina latissima). Estuarine, 

Coastal, and Shelf Science. 246: 107019 

69



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

10 | REVISED September 2022 

70



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

11 | REVISED September 2022 

71



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

12 | REVISED September 2022 

Figure 3. Diagram of the Macroalgal Cultivation Rig (MACR) modified from Bak 2019. Kelp is grown on 

vertically positioned grow lines attached to a long horizontal main line. Four anchors, two on each end of the 

main line, secure the MACR to the seafloor. Stabilizing buoys maintain the position of the main line and grow 

lines in the water column. 

72



NVE Department of the Environment & Natural Resources | AK DNR Land Use Permit Application 

13 | REVISED September 2022 

Figure 4. Latitude and longitude data for the proposed 21.3-acre mariculture research site. Each point 

corresponds to the diagram of the parcel (right, Fig. 2). The vast majority of the proposed acreage (98%) 

accounts for the potential anchor swing and placement of the MACR’s four anchors + scope (3:1). At the 

surface, this research farm will occupy less than 0.5 acre and will be clearly marked by dozens of buoys. 

73



CAUTION: This email originated from outside the State of Alaska mail system.
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know
the content is safe.

Some people who received this message don't often get email from caitlin.mckinstry@eyak-nsn.gov. Learn why
this is important

From: Larson, Clifford A (DNR)
To: Szemborski, Zachary R (DNR)
Subject: FW: PERMIT ARP P-22-022
Date: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 3:19:08 PM

FYI
 

From: Caitlin McKinstry <Caitlin.McKinstry@eyak-nsn.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 2:00 PM
To: Morris, Michelle I (DFG) <michelle.morris2@alaska.gov>; John Whissel <John.Whissel@eyak-
nsn.gov>; Ford, Ethan G (DFG) <ethan.ford@alaska.gov>; Miller, Matthew G (DFG)
<matt.miller@alaska.gov>; DFG, FMPD Permit Coordinator (DFG sponsored)
<dfg.fmpd.permitcoordinator@alaska.gov>; DFG, DSF PermitCoordinator (DFG sponsored)
<dfg.dsf.permitcoordinator@alaska.gov>; DeGraaf, Derek J (DPS) <derek.degraaf@alaska.gov>;
Adams, Steven D (DPS) <steven.adams@alaska.gov>; Larson, Clifford A (DNR)
<clifford.larson@alaska.gov>
Subject: RE: PERMIT ARP P-22-022
 

Hi Michelle,
Thank you very much for your hard work to making this a quick and painless process. I will have a
report to you once we are finished with our kelp collection objectives.
 
Best,
 
Caitlin McKinstry
Biologist
Native Village of Eyak
Department of the Environment and Natural Resources
PO Box 1388
110 Nicholoff Way
Cordova, AK 99574
Office: 907-424-7738
www.eyak-nsn.gov
 
(Please note that Cordova is not on the Alaska road system and
only has USPS and UPS for shipping in/out of town.)
 
 

From: Morris, Michelle I (DFG) <michelle.morris2@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 12:48 PM
To: Caitlin McKinstry <Caitlin.McKinstry@eyak-nsn.gov>; John Whissel <John.Whissel@eyak-
nsn.gov>; Ford, Ethan G (DFG) <ethan.ford@alaska.gov>; Miller, Matthew G (DFG)
<matt.miller@alaska.gov>; DFG, FMPD Permit Coordinator (DFG sponsored)

74



<dfg.fmpd.permitcoordinator@alaska.gov>; DFG, DSF PermitCoordinator (DFG sponsored)
<dfg.dsf.permitcoordinator@alaska.gov>; DeGraaf, Derek J (DPS) <derek.degraaf@alaska.gov>;
Adams, Steven D (DPS) <steven.adams@alaska.gov>; Larson, Clifford A (DNR)
<clifford.larson@alaska.gov>
Subject: PERMIT ARP P-22-022
 
Dear Permittee:
Your 2022 Aquatic Resource Permit CF-22-022 is attached.  If you would like a paper copy,
please let me know.  Please read over the permit carefully.  Make sure that your name,
organization that you are representing, address, effective dates, purpose, species, numbers,
location, method of capture, and disposition are all correct. 
 
A collection report is due by August 30, 2023.  The report is due even if the permitted
activities were not undertaken.  The report must include dates of collection, location, species,
number of each species collected, size, sex, life stage, and disposition.  Please see the
Stipulations section in your permit for more information. A research report is due by January
30, 2024. A suggested collection report template can be found at
http://www.adfg.alaska.gov/index.cfm?adfg=otherlicense.aquatic_reports. 
 
The Permit include stipulations that must be followed prior to, during, and after collections
have taken place.  Please be sure to read and understand the stipulations prior to engaging in
the permitted activities.  Changes to the permit can only be made by the Permit Coordinator
and must be requested prior to engaging in the activities.  A requested change will not be valid
until the amendment has been received by the permit holder.  Any authorized personnel
conducting activities for the purpose of this permit must have a copy of the permit in hand. 
Failure to comply with the conditions of these permits will result in the loss of future
permitting privileges and may result in prosecution.
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,
 
 
Michelle Morris
Permit Coordinator

Alaska Dept of Fish and Game
Division of Commercial Fisheries
Michelle.morris2@alaska.gov
For Aquatic Resource Permits email DFG.FMPD.permitcoordinator@alaska.gov
For Aquatic Farm related topics email DFG.DCF.aquaticfarming@alaska.gov
907-465-4724
 
Warning - This email is from OUTSIDE NVE systems., please be cautious.

75



76



77



78



1

Susan Bourgeois

From: David Allison
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 2:49 PM
To: Susan Bourgeois
Subject: Fw: Sheridan's interest in City of Cordova Harbor Commission seat

fyi...Council all received this! 
 
David Allison, Mayor 
City of Cordova 
PO Box 1210 or 601 1st Street 
Cordova, AK  99574 
(907) 424-6200 City 
(907) 831-6791 Cell 
mayor@cityofcordova.net  

From: Tommy Sheridan <tommysheridan@ymail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 1:24 PM 
To: Tom Bailer <CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net>; Cathy Sherman <councilseatb@cityofcordova.net>; Jeff Guard 
<councilseatc@cityofcordova.net>; Melina Meyer <councilseatd@cityofcordova.net>; Anne Schaefer 
<councilseate@cityofcordova.net>; Kristin Carpenter <councilseatf@cityofcordova.net>; Ken Jones 
<councilseatg@cityofcordova.net> 
Cc: David Allison <mayor@cityofcordova.net> 
Subject: Sheridan's interest in City of Cordova Harbor Commission seat  
  

Dear Cordova City Council Members, and Mayor Allison: 
 
I wish to reiterate my interest in serving the City of Cordova through one of its 2 newly created seats on the 
City's Harbor Commission. As you will see in tonight's City Council meeting agenda packet, I have an 
extensive history of public service, and believe that many of my current roles can be leveraged to the benefit of 
the Harbor Commission. I am very interested in becoming more engaged in local public service, and hope that 
you will concur with Mayor Allison's nomination of myself and David Glasen to the Harbor Commission. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, and for your service to the City of Cordova. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tommy Sheridan (he/him/his) 
Sheridan Consulting 
Email: tommysheridan@ymail.com 
Mobile: (907) 429-8999 
LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/in/tommy-sheridan/ 

79



A	memo	from	Susan	Bourgeois,	CMC,	City	Clerk	
 
DATE:    September 16, 2022 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council, public 
 
SUBJECT:      Agency and Public review period for preliminary decision 

regarding Aquatic Farmsite leases near Cordova 
 

 
Steps in this process: 

1. A business or citizen requests a lease from State of Alaska Department of Natural 
Resources, specifically, Division of Mining Land and Water. 

2. Agencies are made aware of the full project scope and a 20-day agency review 
period begins 

3. The Division makes a preliminary ruling on the request and then a 30-day agency 
and public review period ensues.  

 
The City Clerk receives notice first when the agency review period opens – the full project 
application is put into a council packet for Council review and Council can direct staff to 
comment. 
 
After the Division of Mining, Land and Water makes a preliminary decision on the lease 
request, the Clerk receives notice again and puts the one-page public notice into a Council 
packet under correspondence. The one-page notice has a link to the website where the text 
of the preliminary decision can be read as well as the full project packet can be reviewed.  
This one-page public notice also gives the public direction and timelines for making 
comments. 
 
This aquatic farmsite lease was before Council on March 16, 2022 when the Agency review 
period was open and now this is in correspondence for tonight’s meeting because the 30-
day agency and public comment period is open – deadline for comments October 17, 2022. 
 
DNR has a website explaining this process: 
https://dnr.alaska.gov/mlw/aquatic/application/ 
 
   

80



State of Alaska 
Department of Natural Resources 

Division of Mining, Land & Water 
Southcentral Regional Land Office 

550 W. 7th Ave., Suite 900C 
Anchorage, AK 99501-3577 

 
ADL 233817 

Public and Agency Notice: Aquatic Farmsite Lease  
Pursuant to AS 38.05.945 

(USGS Quad Map Cordova C-6) 
 
Subject to AS 38.05.083, the Southcentral Regional Land Office (SCRO) has made a Preliminary 
Decision to offer a 10-year lease to Amber Morris dba Wild Blue Mariculture for a 22.03-acre, 
more or less, site for the operation of an aquatic farmsite for the purpose of cultivating ribbon kelp 
and sugar kelp. The location of the project area is further described as being within the S1/2 of 
Section 14, Township 14 South, Range 4 West, Copper River Meridian, approximately 7 miles 
from the city of Cordova, Alaska.  
 
The public is invited to review and comment on this Decision. A copy of the Decision can be found 
at https://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/default.aspx or is available in hardcopy upon 
request. Questions concerning how to comment should be directed to Brent Reynolds at (907) 269-
8567, by e-mail at brent.reynolds@alaska.gov or by fax to (907) 269-8913. All comments must 
be received in writing at the above listed mailing address or e-mail on October 17, 2022. To 
be eligible to appeal DNR’s Final Decision, under AS 38.05.035(i)-(m), a person must have 
submitted written comments during this comment period. 
 
The State of Alaska, Department of Natural Resources, complies with Title II of the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with audio impairments that have questions concerning 
this PD may call Relay Alaska at 711 or 1-800-770-8973 for assistance at no cost.  
 
DNR reserves the right to waive technical defects in this publication. 
 

81

https://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/default.aspx


Ordinance 1202 Title 5.22 Land Disposal Code Update  
Page 1 of 2  

 
  
 
  
  

AGENDA ITEM # 16 
City Council Regular Meeting Date: 9/21/22 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
                
   

FROM:  Kevin Johnson, City Planner 
 

DATE:  9/7/22 
 

ITEM:   Ordinance 1202 Title 5.22 Land Disposal Code Update 
   

NEXT STEP:  Review Ordinance for Approval 
                
     
 __X__   ORDINANCE  _____ INFORMATION 
 _____   RESOLUTION  _____ MOTION 
                
                                                                                                     
I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:   Staff has provided draft changes to Cordova Municipal Code (CMC) 5.22 – 
Disposal of Real Property, as requested by the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
Staff requests the City Council reviews Ordinance 1202 to amend Chapter 5.22 and set a date for the 
Public Hearing. 
  
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP:   Recommended Motion: “I move to approve 
Ordinance 1202 updating Cordova Municipal Code 5.22” 
 
III.  FISCAL IMPACTS:  The proposed changes would increase materials costs and staff time an additional 
3 to 5 hours for processing a letter of interest that involves a request for changing the status of a lot from “Not 
Available” to “Available” for the public noticing requirements. There will also be additional legal fees for the 
review of an ordinance to change the code. 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  There have been concerns raised about the existing methods of 
communication for the land disposal maps and changes to them.  The existing process has been in place since 
2012, while there has been some tweaks to the designation of the properties and what those mean, there has 
not been a lot of consideration given to how the land disposal maps and changes to those maps are presented 
to the public.  The land disposal maps are usually reviewed and updated in January, other than these public 

82



Ordinance 1202 Title 5.22 Land Disposal Code Update  
Page 2 of 2  

meetings where the summary of the changes is presented, and the maps are in the packet there is no 
communication to the public of any changes to properties. 
 
City Council and Planning Commission identified a need to change city code regarding disposal of city land 
to include additional public noticing in certain circumstances.  
 
Planning Commission discussed the need for additional noticing at their 6/10/21 and 8/10/21 regular 
meetings. The Planning Commission and City Council then held a joint work session on 10/6/21 to discuss 
the topic. Following these meetings staff was given direction to create draft code that included provisions that 
clarified the land disposal map update process as well as including additional public noticing when new land 
is added to the map, or land designated as “Not Available” is proposed to be changed to “Available”.  
 
Staff created code language that accomplishes the following: 
 

• Define land disposal map definitions and update procedures 
• Includes public noticing when new land is added to the disposal maps or when a lots status is 

requested to be changed from “Not Available” to “Available”. Noticing includes: 
o A sign posted on the site 
o Notice sent to all property owners within 300 feet 
o Notice posted at regular city locations (City Hall, Cordova Public Library, and the Post 

Office) 
 

The draft ordinance was brought to the Planning Commission at their 4/14/22 regular meeting for further 
discussion and they passed a resolution supporting the ordinance and recommending that City Council pass 
the ordinance at their 5/10/22 regular meeting. 
    
V.  LEGAL ISSUES:  Legal reviewed the ordinance and made non-substantive edits to the language. No 
legal issues identified. 
  
VI.  SUMMARY:  At the direction of the City Council and Planning Commission, staff has created code 
updates to CMC 5.22 better defines the land disposal map and annual update process as well as created 
noticing requirements for when new land is added to the disposal maps or when a lots status is requested to 
be changed from “Not Available” to “Available”.   
 
VII.  ATTACHMENTS: 
 

A. Planning Commission Resolution 22-03 
B. Ordinance 1202 

83



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 

Ord. 1202 
Page 1 of 2  

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1202 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ENACTING SECTION 5.22.030 CODIFYING THE LAND DISPOSAL MAP PROCESS 

TO INCREASE PUBLIC AWARENESS OF MUNICIPAL LAND STATUS 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended that Section 5.22.030 should be 
adopted to codify the City’s practices regarding the City of Cordova’s land disposal map; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and City Council have determined that the public 
will benefit from a uniform and standardized process by which land designations in Cordova are 
documented and communicated to the public for purposes of Chapter 5.22 of the Cordova 
Municipal Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and City Council have determined that public 
notice should be required when new properties are added to the land disposal map, or when a 
property becomes “available” to better inform neighboring property owners and the City at large 
to a change in land use. 

 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Cordova, that: 

Section 1.  The Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended by 
adding a section, to be numbered 5.22.030, which said section reads as follows:  

[5.22.030 – Reserved] 5.22.030 Land Disposal Map 

A. The City shall maintain and update annually a map of city owned real 
property. The following designations shall be applied to the land disposal 
map:  

1. Available: These properties are available to purchase or lease.  
2. Available – Subdivision Required: These properties are available to 

purchase or lease, but a subdivision of the land may be required. 
3. Tidelands: Tidelands are considered as “Available” designation but 

shall require review and recommendation from the Harbor 
Commission. Disposal of tidelands shall follow the procedures set 
forth in CMC 5.16. 

4. Not Available: These properties are currently in use for city uses and 
operations but can be the subject of a Letter of Interest per the 
procedures set forth in this chapter.  

5. Leased: These properties are currently under lease and not 
considered available but can be the subject of a Letter of Interest 
during the final year of the lease term.   

84



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through 

Ord. 1202 
Page 2 of 2  

B. Once per year, the City Planner shall review, with the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, the land disposal map to consider possible changes to the 
current designations or to add or remove properties to accurately reflect the 
status of City real property. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall then 
forward a recommendation to the City Council for adoption. 

C. The land disposal map may be modified throughout the year at the request of 
the public through the submission of a Letter of Interest, under the 
procedures set forth in this chapter.  

D. The City Planner shall provide public notice when real property is added to 
the land disposal map, or when the “Not Available” designation is proposed 
to be removed from an existing property. The notice shall:  

1. Include the name of the proponent, the location of the property, the 
proposed use and project description, and information on how the 
public can comment on the proposal.  

2. Be posted on the property in a location visible and legible from the 
Right-Of-Way, beginning thirty (30) days prior to the Planning 
Commission delivering its recommendation to the City Council. 

3. Be posted at City Hall, Cordova Public Library, and the Post Office 
beginning thirty (30) days prior to the Planning Commission 
delivering its recommendation to the City Council.  

4. Be mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the perimeter of 
the subject property thirty (30) days prior to the Planning 
Commission delivering its recommendation to the City Council.  

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and 
publication. This ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the 
City of Cordova, Alaska, within ten (10) days after its passage.  

1st reading: September 7, 2022 
2nd reading and public hearing: 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF __________________, 2022. 

 
______________________________ 
David Allison, Mayor    

 
ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

85



86



MEM:  ORDINANCE 1203 Page 1 of 2 

M E M O R A N D U M  

 

TO: CORDOVA CITY COUNCIL 
CITY MANAGER HELEN HOWARTH 
CITY CLERK SUSAN BORGEOIS 
 

FROM: HOLLY C. WELLS 
JESSICA J. SPUHLER 
 

RE: ORDINANCE 1203: REVISING THE CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
DEFINE THE TERM “PUBLISH” AND “PUBLICATION” AND TO 
CLARIFY NOTICE AND PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

CLIENT: CITY OF CORDOVA 
 

FILE NO.: 401,777.276 
 

DATE: AUGUST 30, 2022 

 
 
Introduction 
 
 If passed and approved, Ordinance 1203 would amend the Cordova Municipal 
Code to define the terms “publish” and “publication” in a manner that allows the City to 
use all forms of electronic, print, and broadcast media to provide notice across multiple 
City functions as reflected in Code. Cordova’s Charter was previously amended to 
encompass electronic, print, and broadcast media and allow Council discretion to 
determine what form of publication provides effective notice to the public.1 Recently the 
Cordova Times changed ownership and ceased print publication for a limited period of 
time, during ongoing City notice periods. Although the Cordova Times is printing again, 
City Staff recommend that the Council modernize the Code to provide flexibility regarding 
notice and publication requirements.   
 
Relevant Background 
 
 Cordova’s Municipal Code contains a variety of notice and publication 
requirements, many requiring “publication in a newspaper of general circulation.” The 
Alaska Supreme Court has determined that “a newspaper is one of ‘general circulation’ 
in a community when it “contains news of general interest to the community and reaches 
a diverse readership.”2  The Court has also held that “courts should defer to a 

 
1 Cordova Municipal Charter § 1-6(5). 
2 Moore v. State, 553 P.2d 8, 21 (Alaska 1976).  

87



MEM:  ORDINANCE 1203 Page 2 of 2 

government's judgment regarding whether a newspaper is one of general 
circulation.”3  Broadly speaking, courts are deferential to local governments’ notice efforts 
where they have been made in good faith in light of statutory requirements.  
  
Based on this case law, Ordinance 1203 and the previous amendment of the City Charter 
provide the City flexibility to identify those print, broadcast, and electronic mediums by 
which it may most effectively communicate with the public.  
 
The Ordinance adopts Section 1.04.255, which provides:  
 
1.04.255 - Publish. 
 
 “Publish” or “publication” means to appear in an internet, print, or broadcast 
medium that contains news of general interest to the community and that reaches a 
diverse readership or audience. 
 
The Ordinance then goes on to replace references to publication “in a newspaper of 
general circulation” with the terms “publish” or “publication” more broadly, to apply the 
Section 1.04.255 definition. This amendment affects notice and publication requirements 
pertaining to elections, open meetings, Planning Commission hearings, job 
announcements, procurement, sale, disposal, and impoundment of property, 
assessments, equalization hearings, sales tax delinquency, and Board of Adjustment 
hearings.  
 
The Ordinance does not change or diminish when notice and publication are required. It 
only provides the City additional discretion regarding how to accomplish notice and 
publication.  
 
Conclusion 
 
 The Ordinance proposes changes across the Code to allow the City to utilize print, 
broadcast, and electronic media in providing notice to the public of City processes. The 
ordinance does not limit the City’s obligation to provide notice, nor does it make other 
substantive changes to Code. These changes are limited in scope to ensure that the City 
can carry out notice requirements at all times, even under circumstances where a local 
newspaper ceases its print publication or changes the frequency of publishing to such an 
extent that Council believes use of the local print “newspaper of general circulation” no 
longer provides sufficient notice to the public.  

 
3 City of St. Mary’s v. St. Mary’s Native Corp., 9 P.3d 1002, 1012 (Alaska 2000) (citing 
Moore at 21). 

88



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 1 of 13 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE 1203 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AMENDING CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 1.04.255, 1.20.010, 2.06.030, 
2.18.050, 2.24.020, 2.56.017, 3.14.020, 3.40.090, 4.12.030, 5.12.110, 5.14.020, 5.24.040, 5.32.080, 
5.32.150, 5.36.110, 5.40.150, 10.52.030, 10.52.050, 10.54.040, 10.54.070, 11.32.050, 13.24.030, 

17.24.040, 18.68.030 AND 18.72.080 TO DEFINE THE TERMS “PUBLISH” AND 
“PUBLICATION” AND TO CLARIFY THE NOTICE AND PUBLICATION 

REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 
 

 WHEREAS, The Alaska Open Meetings Act, AS 44.62.310 - 44.62.319, requires that 
“reasonable public notice shall be given” for all public meetings, and that the “notice may be given using 
print or broadcast media”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 1-6(5) of the Cordova Municipal Charter defines “published” or 
“publication,” as used in the charter, as “appearing at least once in the city in such print or broadcast or 
other electronic media, or a combination thereof, that the council determines will provide the most 
effective notice to the public”; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Alaska Supreme Court has determined that “a newspaper is one of ‘general 
circulation’ in a community when it “contains news of general interest to the community and reaches a 
diverse readership”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the availability and accessibility of internet websites and publications has increased 
substantially in the last decade; and 
 
 WHEREAS, local print newspapers are not published at the same frequency or increasingly at 
all in many small communities, as demonstrated recently by the interruption of the Cordova Times’ print 
publication schedule; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to clarify that “print or broadcast or other electronic 
media” that provide effective notice to the public of local government affairs include internet websites 
and publications that contain news of general interest to the community and reach a diverse readership. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska that: 
 

Section 1. The Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended by adding a section, 
to be numbered 1.04.255, which said section reads as follows: 
 
1.04.255 - Publish. 
“Publish” or “publication” means to appear in an internet, print, or broadcast medium that 
contains news of general interest to the community and that reaches a diverse readership or 
audience. 

 
Section 2. Section 1.20.010 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

89



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 2 of 13 

 
1.20.010 - Publication and posting. 
All rules and regulations by any administrative officer subject to approval by the council under the 
provisions of this code shall be noticed published either by publishing the same one time one 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, or by posting a copy thereof for ten days 
following their approval by the Ccity Ccouncil on the city bulletin board in the city hall.  
  
Section 3. Section 2.06.030 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

 
2.06.030 - Notice of offices to be filled.  
At least 60 days and not more than 90 days before each regular election, the City Clerk shall publish in 
at least one newspaper of general circulation within the City and post on the City’s website, a notice of 
offices to be filled at the upcoming regular election, the manner of declaring candidacy, and final dates 
for filing for candidacy. 

 
Section 4. Section 2.18.050 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
2.18.050 - Validity of election—Certification by Ccity Ccouncil. 

A. No more than forty-eight hours after the all-ballot canvassing session is complete, Ccity 
Ccouncil shall meet to review the certificate of returns prepared and delivered by the 
election board chairperson, and any election contests or applications for a recount. 

B. If Ccity Ccouncil concludes that the election was validly held, such conclusion shall be 
publicly announced and entered upon the minutes of the meeting. The minutes shall 
include the number of votes cast in the election, the names of the persons voted for and 
the propositions and questions voted upon, the offices and seats voted for, the number of 
votes cast for each candidate for each office and seat, and the number of votes for and 
against each proposition. If council concludes that the election is not valid, it shall order 
another election. 

C.  Upon determination that the election was validly held and that substantial compliance 
with all voting procedures was affected and that no material discrepancy exists which 
may affect the outcome of the election, Ccity Ccouncil shall direct the Ccity Cclerk to: 
1. Deliver to each candidate elected to office a certificate of election signed by the 

Mmayor and Ccity Cclerk and authenticated by the municipal seal; 
2. Prepare a certificate of election for each approved proposition to be signed by the 

Mmayor and Ccity Cclerk and authenticated by the municipal seal; and 
3. Prepare and publish at least once an official certificate of election to be published at 

least once in a newspaper of general circulation within the city. In the event of an 
election contest or recount concerning only one office, seat or question, Ccity 
Ccouncil may direct that the Ccity Cclerk issue a certificate for the non-contested 
election for the other offices, seats, and questions. 

 
Section 5. Section 2.24.020 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is herby amended 
to read as follows:  
 
2.24.020 - City Cclerk emergency election authority. 

90



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 3 of 13 

A. In an emergency, the Ccity Cclerk is authorized to take action to preserve the integrity of 
the election, while at the same time allowing eligible voters to vote who might otherwise 
not get an opportunity. 

B. Actions authorized under this chapter may include, but are not limited to: 
1. Requesting expedited relief from a court of competent jurisdiction; 
2. Keeping polling locations, early voting sites, voting assistance centers, and ballot 

drop boxes open longer than allowed by this Code; 
3. Closing polling locations, early voting sites, and ballot drop boxes permanently or for 

a limited time regardless of the requirements in this title, while providing eligible 
voters other opportunities to vote; 

4. Accepting absentee voting applications after the deadlines in this title but before the 
close of the election; 

5. Moving polling places, early voting sites, and ballot drop boxes with as much notice 
as possible without jeopardizing life and safety; and 

6. Accepting votes not cast on official ballots. 
C. The Ccity Cclerk shall take steps to maintain a record of every action taken under this 

chapter and, if possible, shall adequately segregate votes cast under this chapter so that a 
court may rule on the action taken and accurately add or subtract votes as may be 
necessary. 

D. If practicable, the city clerk shall publish post public notice of any changes to the election 
procedure as a result of this chapter, and the reasons for such changes, on the city website 
and in a newspaper of general circulation within the city. If notice is impracticable under 
this subsection, the Ccity Cclerk shall make reasonable efforts to provide notice through 
other avenues and shall provide Ccity Ccouncil with an explanation of the notice 
provided and the reasons for it at Ccity Ccouncil's next special, regular or emergency 
council meeting. 

 
Section 6. Section 2.56.017 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
2.56.017 - Petitions—Publication.  
Promptly after the later to occur of the certification of a petition by the Ccity Cclerk as legal and 
sufficient under Section 2.56.014 and the expiration of the seven-day period for withdrawal of petition 
signatures under Section 2.56.013(C), the Ccity Cclerk shall publish in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city the following information in the petition:  

A. The question presented to the voters by the petition;  
B. The name of each person whose signature appears on the petition; and  
C. The name of each sponsor of the petition.  
 

Section 7. Section 3.14.020 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
3.14.020 – Public notice. 
Reasonable, consistent public notice shall be given for all meetings required to be open under this 
chapter. The notice must include the date, time and place of the meeting, including the location of any 
teleconferencing facilities that will be used. Notice of the meeting shall be published. Publication of 
the meeting shall be by print or broadcast media, as determined by the governmental body. Notice shall 

91



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 4 of 13 

also be posted at the principal office of the public entity or, if the public entity has no principal office, at 
a place designated by the governmental body and in such other locations as may be required in the code 
or Ccity Charter. 

 
Section 8. Section 3.40.090 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
3.40.090 - Planning Ccommission—Powers and duties—Zoning Ccommission. 

A. Planning Commission to be Zoning Commission. The Pplanning Ccommission is 
designated as the Zzoning Ccommission and the terms, method of filling vacancies, ex 
officio members, selection of chairman, and meeting applicable to the Pplanning 
Ccommission shall also apply to the Zzoning Ccommission. They shall be considered as 
one and the same commission for the purposes of this chapter, and all actions may be 
taken and all records kept in the name of the Pplanning Ccommission.  

B.  Powers and Duties. It shall be the duty of the Pplanning Ccommission, exercising the 
powers of Zzoning Ccommission:  
1. To develop, adopt, alter or revise, subject to approval by the Ccity Ccouncil, a 

building code, plumbing code, electrical code, and other codes and regulations that 
may be required from time to time to regulate building construction;  

2. To develop, alter, adopt or revise, subject to approval by Ccity Ccouncil, a plan 
establishing fire zones within the city;   

3. To develop, adopt, alter or revise, subject to approval by Ccity Ccouncil, a 
comprehensive plan designed to lessen congestion in streets, to secure safety from 
fires, panic and other danger, to promote health and the general welfare, to provide 
adequate light and air, to prevent over-crowding of land to avoid undue concentration 
of population, to facilitate adequate provision for transportation, water, sewage, 
schools, parks and other public requirements. To accomplish the above objectives, 
the commission is hereby empowered to:  
a.  Regulate and restrict the height, number of stories and size of buildings and other 

structures, the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and 
use of buildings, structures and land for trade, industry, residence or other 
purposes,  

b. Condemn buildings which have become a fire or health hazard or public nuisance, 
and, after hearing on thirty days' notice to the owner or his agent, order or cause 
the removal or demolition; provided, the owner shall be given at least thirty days 
time after hearing within which to remove the objectionable building or buildings 
before the Ccity may proceed to do so. The cost incurred by the Ccity shall be 
chargeable to the property, first against the salvaged material, which may be sold 
at public auction, the balance of cost, if any, against the land, the same as taxes,  

c. Divide the municipality into districts of such number, shape and area as may be 
deemed best suited to carry out the purposes of this code, and within such districts 
to regulate and restrict the erection, construction, reconstruction, alterations, repair 
or use of buildings, structures or land,  

d. Provide for the manner in which regulations and restrictions and the boundaries of 
districts shall be determined, established and enforced, and from time to time 
amended, supplemented or changed. However, no such regulation, restriction or 
boundary shall become effective until after a public bearing in relation thereto at 

92



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 5 of 13 

which parties in interest and citizens shall have an opportunity to be heard, as 
hereinafter provided. At least fifteen days' Nnotice of the time and place of such 
hearing shall be published for at least fifteen days prior to the hearing. in an 
official paper or a paper of general circulation in such municipality. Such 
regulations, restrictions and boundaries may from time to time be amended, 
supplemented, changed, modified or repealed. In case, however, of a protest 
against such change, signed by the owners of twenty percent or more, either of the 
area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of twenty 
percent or more of the area of the lots immediately abutting either side of the 
territory included in such proposed change or separated therefrom only in an alley 
or street, such amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable vote 
of three-fourths of all the members of the council. The provisions relative to public 
hearings and official notice shall apply equally to all changes or amendments. 

e. Develop, adopt, alter, or revise, subject to approval by Ccity Ccouncil a coastal 
management element to the comprehensive plan for the community; said coastal 
management element shall be prepared in conformance with applicable state and 
federal law. To accomplish these objectives, the commission is empowered to:  

i. Prescribe and recommend an area to be designated the Cordova coastal zone 
into management districts of such number, shape, and area as may be 
deemed best suited to carry out the purposes hereof; and within each 
management district, to prescribe proper and improper water and land uses 
and activities and policies which shall apply,  

ii. Hear and decide upon those applications which involve uses or activities that 
are permissible only upon a showing of certain specified conditions; said 
conditions being a part of the ordinance codified in this section. When such 
decisions are to be heard, they shall be conducted in a manner as that 
prescribed in Chapter 18.60,  

iii. Provide for a manner in which the requirements of the coastal management 
program may be amended including revisions to the size and areal extent of 
the coastal zone and extent and classification of the management districts, 
and the determination of proper and improper uses and policies pertaining 
thereto; provided such modifications shall be subject to approval by the 
Ccity Ccouncil and the state of Alaska,  

iv. Hear and decide upon appeals pertaining to decisions by the planning 
director regarding the coastal management program. Such appeals shall be 
conducted in the manner set forth in Chapter 18.64.  

 
Section 9. Section 4.12.030 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
4.12.030 - Job announcements and publicity. 
In order to ensure an adequate number of candidates for present or anticipated vacancies and to permit 
successful competition with other employees, the Ccity Mmanager will publish have  issued job 
announcements and otherwise publicize vacancies through such media which will include, but not be 
limited to, the a local newspaper. All job announcements shall be clear and readable. They shall include 
the job title, salary range, job qualification requirements, examination information including the time, 
place and manner of completing applications, and other pertinent information. Publicity for all regular 

93



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 6 of 13 

full-time and regular part-time job vacancies shall be conducted for a sufficient period of time in the 
same manner to ensure reasonable opportunity for persons to apply and be considered for employment. 
When a job vacancy exists for a regular full-time position, regular part-time position, temporary full-
time or temporary part-time position, written notice shall be posted for ten working days. At the close of 
the ten day advertisement period, the Ccity will first consider only city applications submitted by regular 
full-time or regular part-time city employees who submitted an application during the first five days of 
the advertisement period. If the vacancy is not filled by a regular full-time or regular part-time city 
employee who submitted an application during the first five days of the advertisement period, the Ccity 
will consider all other applications made during the advertisement period.  
 
Section 10. Section 5.12.110 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.12.110 - Solicitation and acceptance of bids. 

A.  The Ccity Mmanager shall initiate competitive sealed bidding by issuing an invitation for 
bids. The invitation for bids shall state, or incorporate by reference, all specifications and 
contractual terms and conditions applicable to the procurement.  

B.  Public notice of the invitation for bids shall be published at least once not less than 
fourteen days before the last day on which bids will be accepted, in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the city. The notice also shall be posted at the Cordova post office 
or such other place in the city designated by the council that is accessible to the public. 
The contents of the notice shall be sufficient to inform interested readers of the general 
nature of the supplies, services or construction being procured and the procedure for 
submitting a bid. The Ccity Mmanager shall mail or otherwise deliver notices to 
prospective bidders that have registered their names and addresses on a current bidders' 
mailing list maintained by the Ccity. The Ccity Mmanager shall keep a written record of 
the name of each person receiving notice and of the date and manner of delivery. The 
failure of any person to receive notice under this subsection shall not affect the validity 
of any award or contract.  

C.  The terms of an invitation for bids may be modified or interpreted only by written 
addendum issued by the Ccity Mmanager. Addenda to bids shall be sent to each recipient 
of the original bid documents. A bid may be considered responsive only if it 
acknowledges receipt of all addenda except for any addendum that the Ccity Mmanager 
determines in writing would have no material effect on the terms of the bid.  

D.  Sealed bids shall be submitted by mail, delivery service or in person at the place and no 
later than the time specified in the invitation for bids. Bids not submitted at the proper 
place or within the time specified shall not be opened or considered.  

E.  Bids shall be opened at the time and place designated in the invitation for bids. All bid 
openings shall be open to the public. Bids are not open to public inspection until after the 
notice of intent to award a contract is issued. The Ccity Mmanager shall tabulate the 
amount of each bid and shall record such other information as may be necessary or 
desirable for evaluation together with the name of each bidder. The tabulation shall be 
open to public inspection, and a copy of the tabulation shall be furnished to each bidder. 
To the extent the bidder designates in writing and other provisions of law permit, trade 
secrets and other proprietary data contained in a bid document shall be withheld from 
public inspection.  

94



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 7 of 13 

F.  Bids shall be accepted unconditionally without alteration or correction. No criteria except 
those set forth in the invitation for bids, including all specifications and addenda, may be 
used in determining the low bidder and the responsiveness of bids.  

 
Section 11. Section 5.14.020 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.14.020 - Procedure. 
Sales of property, material or equipment the estimated value of which is over one thousand dollars shall 
be as follows:  

A. By publishing a notice of sale advertising for a period not less than fourteen days prior 
to date of sale. The notice of sale Advertising shall also be posted be in two consecutive 
issues of the local newspaper, on the bulletin board in the City Hall, and in one other 
public place.  

B.  Bids shall be sealed bids and accompanied by a deposit of not less than ten percent of the 
amount bid.  

C.  No conditions of sale shall be considered except payment in full within seventy-two hours 
after acceptance of bid. Deposits of the three highest bidders will be held seventy-two 
hours or until the balance is paid on the bid of first successful bidder. If bid is not 
completed, sale shall be made to next highest bid or if otherwise acceptable.  

D.  No bid may be withdrawn subsequent to the opening of bids, and in the event a successful 
bidder does not complete the purchase, the deposit shall become the property of the city 
as liquidated damages.  

 
Section 12. Section 5.24.040 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.24.040 - Notice of sale - Required. 
Notice of sale of impounded property shall be given all persons known to claim an interest in such 
property by the Ccity Mmanager no less than fifteen days preceding such sale. The Ccity Mmanager 
shall exercise reasonable diligence in providing actual notice in writing to known owners by certified 
mail or personal delivery. Notice by certified mail shall be deemed effective from the date of the posting 
by the Ccity Mmanager. In any case, notice shall be deemed sufficient upon  

1.  Publication publication of notice of sale three times during three consecutive 
calendar weeks, one in each week, in a newspaper of general circulation in the city.  

2.  Posting the notice of sale on the bulletin board in the City Hall, and 
3.  Posting the notice of sale in one other public place. 

 
Section 13. Section 5.32.080 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.32.080 - Notice of public hearing and protest. 

A.  The Ccity Mmanager shall forward to the council with the report on an improvement 
proposal a resolution creating a special assessment district for the proposed improvement. 
The council shall set the date and time for a public hearing on the resolution, which shall 
be not less than thirty days after the date on which notices will be mailed under subsection 
B of this section.  

95



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 8 of 13 

B.  After the council sets the date and time for the public hearing on a resolution creating a 
special assessment district, the Ccity Cclerk shall:  
1.  Publish at least once a week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general 

circulation within the city a notice of the public hearing including the following:  
a. The time and place of the public hearing,  
b. A description of the proposed improvement,  
c. A map of the proposed special assessment district, and  
d. A description of the protest procedure in subsection C of this section, and  

2.  Mail, certified return receipt requested, to each record owner of real property within 
the proposed special assessment district a notice of the public hearing, including the 
information in the published notice and the following:  

a. The legal description and city tax parcel number of the record owner's property 
that is proposed to be assessed, and 

b. The estimated amount of the assessment against the property. 
C.  The owner of record of real property in a proposed special assessment district may file 

with the Ccity Cclerk a written protest of the creation of the district not later than five 
p.m. on the last day on which city offices are open before the date of the public hearing.  

 
Section 14. Section 5.32.150 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.32.150 - Payment of assessments. 

A.  The resolution confirming the assessment roll shall fix the date on which the special 
assessments are due. A special assessment may not be due before thirty days after the 
date of mailing of the assessment statements under subsection C of this section.  

B.  The council may provide in the resolution confirming the assessment roll that assessments 
are payable in annual or semiannual installments over the term provided in the resolution, 
which may not exceed fifteen years. The resolution shall fix the dates on which special 
assessment installments are due, and the annual rate of interest to accrue on the unpaid 
principal balance of a special assessment.  

C.  Within ten days after the adoption of the resolution confirming the assessment roll, the 
Ccity Cclerk shall mail to each record owner of real property in the special assessment 
district an assessment statement including the following information:  
1.  The legal description and city tax parcel number of the property;  
2.  The amount and due date of the assessment, and if the assessment is payable in 

installments, the amount of each installment, the dates on which installments are due, 
and the annual rate of interest accruing on the unpaid balance of the special 
assessment;  

3.  The penalty that will apply to delinquent assessments or assessment installments;  
4.  That the entire assessment may be paid without interest within thirty days after the 

date of mailing of the assessment statement; and  
5.  That the resolution confirming the assessment roll is a final decision and any person 

objecting to an assessment has thirty days from the date of mailing of the special 
assessment statement to appeal the confirmation of the assessment roll to the superior 
court.  

D.  Within five days after assessment statements are mailed, the city clerk shall publish notice 
that the statements have been mailed in a newspaper of general circulation within the city.  

96



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 9 of 13 

 
Section 15. Section 5.36.110 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.36.110 - Equalization hearings—Notice required. 
When all assessment notices have been mailed, the assessor shall cause to be published in a newspaper 
of general circulation in the city at least once each week for two successive weeks a notice that the 
assessment rolls have been completed, which notice shall state when and where the equalization hearings 
shall be held by the council sitting as a board of equalization, hereinafter called board. The board of 
equalization meetings shall be held on the third Monday each April and continue each day thereafter as 
it may deem necessary.  
 
Section 16. Section 5.40.150 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
5.40.150 - Delinquent sales tax roll confidentiality. 

A.  During the third week of June of each year, the Ccity Mmanager or theirhis designee 
shall publish, in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, a notice with the names of 
those sales tax accounts that are delinquent for the quarter ending March 31st; and 
successively in September, those sales tax accounts that are delinquent for the second 
quarter ending June 30th; in December, those sales tax accounts that are delinquent for 
the third quarter ending September 30th; in March, those sales tax accounts that have 
become due and delinquent for the fourth quarter ending December 31st. The manager or 
his designee shall include in the notice the names of those sales tax accounts which remain 
delinquent from any preceding quarter. For the purposes of determining delinquency for 
publication, an account shall be considered delinquent if the account is delinquent as 
defined by Section 5.40.120(B) and no agreement has been reached by the seller with the 
city for other means of payment. The publication of such delinquent sales tax accounts 
shall not be considered a disclosure within the provisions of this section.  

B.  1.  All returns filed with the city for the purpose of complying with the terms of this 
 chapter, all data obtained for such returns, and all books, papers, record or memoranda 
 obtained under the provisions of this section are declared to be confidential, and shall 
 be exempt from inspection of all persons except the Ccity Ttreasurer, Ccity 
 Mmanager and Ccity Aattorney, or any authorized employee thereof; provided, 
 however, the Ccity Mmanager may present to the city council in executive session 
 any return or data obtained therefrom; provided, the purpose of such presentation is 
 informational or concerning legal action against the person whose return or tax 
 remittance is in question.  
2.  All returns referred to in this chapter, and all data taken therefrom, shall be kept secure 
 from public inspection, and from all private inspection, except as provided otherwise 
 in this section; provided, however, nothing in this section shall be construed to 
 prohibit the delivery to a person, or his duly authorized representative, of a copy of 
 any return or report filed by him or her, nor to prohibit the publication of notices 
 provided for in this section.  

C.  The use of tax returns in a criminal or civil action brought to enforce the terms of this 
chapter against any person shall not be deemed a violation of this section, and the Ccity, 
in the prosecution of any such action, may allege, prove and produce any return 

97



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 10 of 13 

theretofore filed by and on behalf of any such defendant, including any data obtained 
from any such return or returns, other provisions of this chapter to the contrary 
notwithstanding.  

 
Section 17. Section 10.52.030 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
10.52.030 - Notice to owners and lienholders. 

A.  The Ccity shall give written notice to each record owner and lienholder of a vehicle that 
the Ccity has impounded by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or if the 
vehicle is not registered in the state or the Ccity cannot determine the name and address 
of the owner or lienholder, by publishing publication the notice, posting the notice on 
the bulletin board in the City Hall, and posting the notice in one other public place, 
for four consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the city.  

B.  The notice shall include:  
1.  A description of the vehicle and its location when impounded;  
2.  The reasons why the Ccity impounded the vehicle;  
3.  The name and address of the registered owner and the vehicle identification number 

of the vehicle;  
4.  A statement that unless within seven days after the date of the notice, either: the 

vehicle is released from impoundment under Section 10.52.020, or a person with an 
interest in the vehicle requests a hearing under Section 10.52.040, the Ccity may 
without further notice impound and dispose of the vehicle by sale, destruction or other 
disposition authorized by law.  

 
Section 18. Section 10.52.050 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
10.52.050 - Disposal of impounded vehicle. 

A.  Upon satisfaction of the notice and hearing requirements prescribed in this chapter, the 
Ccity may dispose of an impounded vehicle that is not released from impoundment under 
Section 10.52.020 within sixty days after the date of the notice of impoundment under 
Section 10.52.030 by removing it to a scrap processing yard or auto wrecker for disposal 
or by public auction not less than twenty days after notice of the auction is published in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the city. The notice of auction must describe the 
vehicle and specify the place, date and time at which it will be sold.  

B.  The proceeds of any sale of an impounded vehicle shall be applied first to reimburse the 
Ccity for costs of disposing of the vehicle, including towing, storing and selling the 
vehicle, and second to satisfy any amount the payment of which would be required for 
the release of the vehicle from impoundment under Section 10.52.020. Any part of the 
proceeds remaining thereafter shall be made available to the former owner of the vehicle 
if claimed within thirty days from the date of sale, and if not so claimed shall become the 
property of the city.  

 
Section 19. Section 10.54.040 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 

98



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 11 of 13 

10.54.040 - Notice to owners and lienholders. 
A.  The Ccity shall give written notice to each record owner and lienholder of a vehicle that 

the Ccity considers the vehicle to be abandoned. The Ccity shall give the notice by:  
1.  Posting on the vehicle; and  
2.  By personal delivery or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or if 

the vehicle is not registered in the state or the Ccity cannot determine the name and 
address of the owner or lienholder, by publishing publication the notice, posting the 
notice on the bulletin board in the City Hall, and posting the notice in one other 
public place, at least once a week for four consecutive weeks in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the city.  

B.  The notice shall include:  
1.  A description of the vehicle and its location;  
2.  The reasons why the Ccity considers the vehicle to be abandoned;  
3.  The name and address of the registered owner and the vehicle identification number 

of the vehicle;  
4.  A statement that unless within fifteen days after the date of the notice, either: (a) the 

vehicle is removed and stored in a lawful manner, or (b) a person with an interest in 
the vehicle requests a hearing under Section 10.54.060, the Ccity may without further 
notice impound and dispose of the vehicle by sale, destruction or other disposition 
authorized by law.  

 
Section 20. Section 10.54.070 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
10.54.070 - Disposal of abandoned vehicles. 

A.  Upon satisfaction of the notice and hearing requirements prescribed in this chapter, the 
Ccity may dispose of an abandoned vehicle by removing it to a scrap processing yard or 
auto wrecker for disposal or by public auction not less than twenty days after notice of the 
auction is published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city. The notice of auction 
must describe the vehicle and specify the place, date and time at which it will be sold.  

B.  The proceeds of any sale of an abandoned vehicle shall be applied first to reimburse the 
Ccity for costs of disposing of the vehicle, including towing, storing and selling the 
vehicle, and second to satisfy any fine or penalty that has been imposed for the unlawful 
abandonment of the vehicle. Any part of the proceeds remaining thereafter shall be made 
available to the former owner of the vehicle if claimed within thirty days from the date of 
sale, and if not so claimed shall become the property of the Ccity.  

 
Section 21. Section 11.32.050 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
11.32.050 - Notice of sale. 
Any vessel impounded shall be held by the City for a period of not less than thirty days during which 
the City shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation in Cordova a notice describing the vessel in 
general terms, including the name and/or register number, the name and address of the owner, if known, 
or if not known shall so state the location of the vessel and the intention of the City to sell the same at 
public auction, on a day and at a place and time certain, not less than ten days prior to the sale, for cash 
to the highest bidder. During the thirty day period, the notice shall also be posted on the bulletin 

99



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 12 of 13 

board at the City Hall, at the harbor office, and in one other public place. At any time prior to the 
auction, the owner, operator or agent may redeem the vessel by a cash payment of all City charges against 
the vessel.  
 
Section 22. Section 13.24.030 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
13.24.030 - Public hearing—Notification and publication. 
The planning commission shall hold a hearing on a petition within but not more than sixty days after 
submittal to the commission pursuant to Section 13.24.020(C). Notice of the hearing, including when 
and by whom the petition was filed, its purpose, the time and place of the hearing, and a general 
description of the vacation being sought, shall be published once a week for one week in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the city and shall be advertised for seven days prior to the day of the hearing on 
the local television/cable/radio station and shall also be posted on the public bulletin boards at the city 
library and United States post office at least seven days prior to the day of the hearing. The Ccity 
Pplanner shall also mail a copy of said notice to the owners of property located within three hundred feet 
from any point on the outside perimeter of the proposed vacation.  
 
Section 23. Section 17.24.040 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
17.24.040 - Changes and amendments. 
Any regulations or provisions of this title may be changed and amended from time to time by the Ccity 
Ccouncil; provided, however, that such changes or amendments shall not become effective until after 
study and report by the Pplanning Ccommission and until after a public hearing has been held, public 
notice of which shall have been given by publishing in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen 
days prior to such hearing and posted in the City Hall.  
 
Section 24. Section 18.68.030 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 
18.68.030 - Appeals—Procedure.  

A.  The Bboard of Aadjustment shall fix a reasonable time for hearing on any appeal taken 
from the Pplanning Ccommission if a public hearing is required or desirable.  

B.  The board shall give public notice of such hearing by publishing notice thereof in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the city at least five days or not more than fifteen 
days prior to the date of hearing. The board shall also mail notices to the appellant and to 
the owners of all property affected by any appeal at least five days prior to the date of the 
hearing if such notice by mail was given to the planning commission. For the purpose of 
such notice, the affected property shall be deemed to be that area within three hundred 
feet from the exterior boundary of the area covered by the appeal. Notices may be sent to 
cover a greater area if it is deemed that the appeal affects a greater area.  

C.  Upon the hearing, any party may appear in person or by agent or by the attorney.  
D.  The Bboard of Aadjustment shall decide appeals within a reasonable time and shall give 

due consideration to the findings and recommendations of the Pplanning Ccommission.  
 

100



 

 
New language is bold and underlined; deleted language is stricken through  

Ord. 1203 
Page 13 of 13 

Section 25. Section 18.72.080 of the Cordova Code of Ordinances of Cordova, Alaska, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
18.72.080 – Effective date. 
No ordinance of the Ccity Ccouncil affecting an amendment, supplement, change or classification, 
repeal of regulations or restrictions, the boundaries of districts or classifications of property shall become 
effective until after a public hearing in relation thereto at which parties in interest and citizens shall have 
an opportunity to be heard. At least fifteen days' notice of the time and place of such hearing shall be 
published in a paper of general circulation in the city. When the proposed amendment covers a change 
in the boundaries of a district, notice to owners of property shall be given in the manner above prescribed 
for variances. 
 
Section 26.  This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication.  This 
ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
within ten (10) days after its passage.  
 
1st reading:  September 7, 2022 
2nd reading and public hearing:  ________________ 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2022. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       David Allison, Mayor 
 
     ATTEST: 
       __________________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

101



Pending Agenda (PA) Primer 
 

What is Pending Agenda? 

A list of topics that Council wants to explore in the future (these are Pending, for an Agenda). 

These topics might be worthy of an agenda item at a regular/special meeting (if there is a specific 
action being requested). 

These topics might be worthy of a work session when Council can discuss at more length and come 
to a consensus about direction to staff to bring an action back. 

 

How do you get something ON Pending Agenda? 

During PA, a Council member can suggest a topic to add to PA. At that time, a second Council 
member, the Mayor or the City Manager can act as the second who agrees to add the item to the 
Pending Agenda List. 

 

How do you get something OFF Pending Agenda? 

During PA, a Council member can mention a topic that is on the list of topics and name a specific 
date to hear the item, either as an action item on a regular/special meeting or as a discussion item 
for a work session. If this occurs, a second member is still required, and the member(s) should 
clearly articulate the action intended or the specific topic for discussion and set a specific date.  

Quarterly, we will go through all the items listed on PA and purge the ones that no longer seem 
practical or that have been handled already.  

 

What is NOT appropriate for Pending Agenda? 

Sometimes items are considered for PA but are more appropriately tasks for the Clerk or Manager. 
These items might warrant Council action in the future, and if so, will be brought back when that is 
necessary. A consensus of the entire body is required to task the Manager or Clerk with something 
specific. 

The PA part of the meeting sometimes becomes a more detailed discussion of an item being 
proposed. Council should refrain from the extraneous discussion of a topic at this time and instead 
clearly state the item, get agreement of a second, and it will be added to the list. Obviously, 
sometimes a short discussion is required in order to articulate the detail of what is being added. 

102



A.
initially put on or 

revisited 

1) Plan/schedule for departmental site visits/work sessions/state of the dept reporting 3/17/2021

2) Ordinance change (Title 4) before a new CBA gets negotiated ‐ so Council has a role in approval process 2/17/2021

3) Public Safety Resources ‐ discussion  1/20/2021

4) City addressing ‐ ongoing project  2022 11/4/2020

5) City Manager authority re: purchases/contracts and whether budgeted/unbudgeted ‐ new finance director 2/19/2020

6) Council discussion/direction to Planning and Zoning Commission re sale of City owned residential lots 11/3/2021

* this to occur in 2022 when Planning Commission begins work on land disposal maps

7) Council discussion about incentives for investment in Cordova 11/3/2021

8) Revenues/financial planning/sales tax cap discussion 12/1/2021

9) Res to legislature supporting adoption of stricter punishment for drug sales that cause overdose deaths 6/15/2022

10) Joint Work Session with Harbor Commission when City Project Team deems it necessary 7/6/2022

11) Code update of Chapter 5.40 Sales Tax 8/3/2022

B. date referred

1) Res 03‐22‐05 adopting 2022 land disposal maps‐referred until amendments to 5.22 come before Coucnil 3/2/2022

5.22 amendments via ord 1202 will be effective end 10/22 ‐ will approve new land maps 1/23

2) Disposal of PWSSC Bldg ‐ referred until more of a plan for north harbor so the term of RFP would be known 1/19/2022

3) Res 11‐21‐42 placing ballot prop to change Council seats to undesignated (after 2022 state election) 11/17/2021

4) Res 03‐21‐13 support for snow avalanche and landslide hazards assessment 3/17/2021

5) Disposal of ASLS 79‐258 ‐ motion to put out for proposals was referred to staff after an e.s. 9/16/2020

6) Res 05‐20‐18 re CCMC sale committee 5/6/2020

7) Res 12‐18‐36 re E‐911, will be back when a plan has been made 12/19/2018

C.

1) Capital Priorities List Resolution (03‐22‐03) is in each packet ‐ if 2 council members want to revisit the resolution

they should mention that at Pending Agenda and it can be included in the next packet for action

2) Staff quarterly reports will be in the following packets: some are in 4/20/22 others will be in 5/4/22 packet for 1Q

10/19/2022 1/18/2023 4/19/2023 7/20/2023

3) Joint City Council and School Board Meetings ‐ twice per year, April & October

6pm before Council mtg 5/3/2023 6pm @ CHS before Sch Bd mtg Oct. or Nov. 2022

4) Clerk's evaluation ‐ each year in Feb (before Council changeover after election) ‐ next Feb '23

5) Manager's evaluation ‐ each year in Jan ‐ next one Jan '23

6) In May each year City will provide public outreach regarding beginning of bear season                            photo by Wendy Ranney

D.

item for action proposed date

1) …

2) …

3) …

tasking which staff: Manager/Clerk?

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska

Pending Agenda

September 21, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Future agenda items ‐ topics put on PA with no specific date for inclusion on an agenda

Resolutions, Ordinances, other items that have been referred to staff

Upcoming Meetings, agenda items and/or events: with specific dates

Council adds items to Pending Agenda in this way:

Mayor Allison or the City Manager can either agree to such an item and that will automatically place it

on an agenda, or a second Council member can concur with the sponsoring Council member.

103



E.

1) Fisheries Advisory Committee: 1‐John Williams (fisheries educ/Mar Adv Prgm) 2‐Jeremy Botz (ADF&G)

re‐auth res 01‐20‐04 approved Jan 15, 2020 3‐vacant (processor rep) 4‐Jim Holley (marine transportation/AML)

auth res 04‐03‐45 approved Apr 16, 2003 5‐Chelsea Haisman (fish union/CDFU) 6‐Tommy Sheridan (aquaculture)

2) Cordova Trails Committee: 1‐Elizabeth Senear 2‐Toni Godes

re‐auth res 11‐18‐29 app 11/7/18 3‐Dave Zastrow 4‐Ryan Schuetze

auth res 11‐09‐65 app 12/2/09 5‐Wendy Ranney 6‐Michelle Hahn

3) Fisheries Development Committee: 1‐Warren Chappell 2‐Andy Craig 3‐Bobby Linville

 authorizing resoluƟon 12‐16‐43 4‐Gus Linville 5‐vacant 6‐Bob Smith

reauthotrization via Res 11‐19‐51 7‐ Ron Blake 8‐ John Whissel

approved 11/20/2019

F.

1) Prince William Sound Regional Citizens Advisory Council

Robert Beedle re‐appointed March 2022 2 year term until March 2024

re‐appointed March 2020

re‐appointed June 2018

re‐appointed March 2016

re‐appointed March 2014

appointed April 2013

2) Prince William Sound Aquaculture Corporation Board of Directors

Tom Bailer re‐appointed October 2021 3 year term until Sept 2024

re‐appointed October 2018

appointed February 2017‐filled a vacancy

City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska

Pending Agenda

September 21, 2022 Regular Council Meeting

Membership of existing advisory committees of Council formed by resolution:

City of Cordova appointed reps to various non‐City Boards/Councils/Committees:

104



Res. 03-22-03 CIP List 
Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 03-22-03 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
DESIGNATING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  

WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council has identified several Capital Improvement 
projects that will benefit the citizens of Cordova, and in several cases the entirety of Prince William 
Sound; and 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Cordova has identified the following Capital 
Improvement projects as being critical to the future well-being and economy of Cordova and the 
surrounding area: 

1. Port and Harbor Renovations
a. South Harbor replacement (G, H & J floats priority)
b. Harbor basin expansion
c. General upgrades (north harbor sidewalks, waste oil building, harbor crane)

2. Upgrade Community Water Supply
a. Extend City water supply to 6-mile

3. Large Vessel Maintenance Facility
a. Shipyard building
b. Shipyard expansion and improvements

4. Public Safety Building
5. Road Improvements / ADA Sidewalk Improvements

a. Second Street
b. 6th & 7th Streets sidewalk/drainage project
c. Ferry terminal sidewalk
d. General street and sidewalk improvements

and; 

WHEREAS, some or all of these projects will be submitted to State or Federal legislators 
and/or agencies as Capital Improvement projects for the City of Cordova, Alaska. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, hereby designates and prioritizes the above listed projects as Capital Improvement 
projects. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 2nd DAY OF MARCH 2022 

________________________________ 
Clay R. Koplin, Mayor 

Attest: 

________________________________ 
Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk   mos

t re
ce

ntl
y a

pp
rov

ed
 C

IP lis
t

105



CALENDAR MONTH SEPTEMBER
CALENDAR YEAR 2022
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
28 29 30 31 1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Community Rm A
CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference 
Room

2022
September

Cncl - 1st & 3rd Wed
P&Z - 2nd Tues
SchBd, Hrb Cms - 2nd Wed
CTC - 3rd Tues
P&R - last Tues
CEC - 4th Wed
CCMCA Bd - last Thurs
 

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 P&R CCM 6:00 CCMCAB HCR

6:00 CEC Board Meeting

6:45 Council Public Hearing
7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 Harbor Cms CCM
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

Alaska State Fair Aug 19 - Sept 5

CSD Labor Day 
Holiday Sept 5

Sept 5th Labor Day 
Holiday City Hall
Offices Closed

5:30 CTC Board Meeting

CJHS BBall & Cheer start Sept 14

Sept 15 - Oct 15

106

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.btrcs.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/School-1st-day-of-school-title.png&imgrefurl=https://www.btrcs.org/events/first-day-school/&docid=vDj6h3N2HmcqrM&tbnid=6EyhHSpfGLt6tM:&vet=10ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ..i&w=1600&h=902&bih=890&biw=1572&q=FIRST%20DAY%20OF%20SCHOOL&ved=0ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/iu/Swimming-clip-art-pictures-free-clipart-images-2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/the-village/youthcommissionhtmlhtml.html&docid=bT2hncH6DOYAvM&tbnid=H9Ralr-lVACv5M:&vet=10ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ..i&w=570&h=700&bih=850&biw=1467&q=hs%20swimming&ved=0ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.lsr7.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/halloween1.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.hercampus.com/school/brandeis/10-festive-ways-get-halloween-spirit&docid=i4_VuK8HBof2tM&tbnid=FbPSrAGcVOGTYM:&vet=10ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk..i&w=1429&h=1521&bih=849&biw=1589&q=picture%20of%20Halloween&ved=0ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk&iact=mrc&uact=8


CALENDAR MONTH OCTOBER
CALENDAR YEAR 2022
1ST DAY OF WEEK SUNDAY

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 Notes
Legend: 
CCAB-Community Rms A&B
HSL-High School Library

CCA-Community Rm A
CCB-Community Rm B
CCM-Mayor's Conf Rm
CCER-Education Room

LN-Library Fireplace Nook
CRG-Copper River Gallery
HCR-CCMC Conference 
Room

2022
October

Cncl - 1st & 3rd Wed
P&Z - 2nd Tues
SchBd, Hrb Cms - 2nd Wed
CTC - 3rd Tues
P&R - last Tues
CEC - 4th Wed
CCMCA Bd - last Thurs
 

6:30 P&Z CCAB

6:00 P&R CCM 6:00 CCMCAB HCR

6:00 CEC Board Meeting

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

6:00 Harbor Cms CCM
7:00 Sch Bd HSL

7:00 Council reg mtg CCAB

Alaska Day 
Holiday City 

Offices closed

Indigenous 
Peoples 
Day CSD 
Holiday

CSD End 
1st

Quarter

----- absentee voting @ Cordova Center Atrium Oct 24 - Nov 7 M-F 8a-4:30p -----

Sept 15 - Oct 15

107

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://www.btrcs.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/School-1st-day-of-school-title.png&imgrefurl=https://www.btrcs.org/events/first-day-school/&docid=vDj6h3N2HmcqrM&tbnid=6EyhHSpfGLt6tM:&vet=10ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ..i&w=1600&h=902&bih=890&biw=1572&q=FIRST%20DAY%20OF%20SCHOOL&ved=0ahUKEwitoLS1x5_UAhVhjVQKHR5nC_AQMwh7KAUwBQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/iu/Swimming-clip-art-pictures-free-clipart-images-2.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.rousespointny.com/the-village/youthcommissionhtmlhtml.html&docid=bT2hncH6DOYAvM&tbnid=H9Ralr-lVACv5M:&vet=10ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ..i&w=570&h=700&bih=850&biw=1467&q=hs%20swimming&ved=0ahUKEwj4pfSiyoTWAhUBzmMKHZ9sBZUQMwhbKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.lsr7.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/halloween1.jpg&imgrefurl=https://www.hercampus.com/school/brandeis/10-festive-ways-get-halloween-spirit&docid=i4_VuK8HBof2tM&tbnid=FbPSrAGcVOGTYM:&vet=10ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk..i&w=1429&h=1521&bih=849&biw=1589&q=picture%20of%20Halloween&ved=0ahUKEwijjMKR3sjWAhVBxmMKHThoCxMQMwjFASgJMAk&iact=mrc&uact=8


seat/length of term email Date Elected Term Expires

Mayor: David Allison March 1, 2022 March-25

3 years Mayor@cityofcordova.net

Council members:

Seat A: Tom Bailer, Vice Mayor March-25

3 years CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net

Seat B: Cathy Sherman March 3, 2020 March-23

3 years CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net

Seat C: Jeff Guard March-23

3 years CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net

Seat D: Melina Meyer March-24

3 years CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net

Seat E: Anne Schaefer March-24

3 years CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net

Seat F: Kristin Carpenter March 1, 2022 March-25

3 years CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net

Seat G: Ken Jones March 1, 2022 March-25

3 years CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net

length of term Date Elected Term Expires

3 years Barb Jewell March-25
bjewell@cordovasd.org

3 years Henk Kruithof March 2, 2021 March-24
hkruithof@cordovasd.org

3 years Terri Stavig March 1, 2022 March-25
tstavig@cordovasd.org

3 years Peter Hoepfner March-24
phoepfner@cordovasd.org

3 years Sheryl Glasen, president March-23
saglasen@cordovasd.org

vacant

March 1, 2022 
March 5, 2019

March 2, 2021
March 6, 2018

Mar 1, 2022, Mar 
5, 2013, Mar 1, 

2016, Mar 5, 2019

Mar 4, 2014, Mar 7, 
2017, Mar 3, 2020

Mar 7, 2006, Mar 3, 
2009, Mar 6, 2012, 
Mar 3, 2015, Mar 6, 
2018, Mar 2, 2021

Mar 3, 2020
Mar 5, 2017

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials

Cordova School District School Board of Education - Elected

Mayor and City Council - Elected

& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

seat up for re-appt in Nov 22

seat up for re-election in 2023

board/commission chair

March 2, 2021
March 6, 2018

December 6, 2017 elected by cncl

108



length of term Date Elected Term Expires

3 years Linnea Ronnegard, Chair March-24
CCMCBoardSeatC@cdvcmc.com

3 years Ann Linville March 1, 2022 March-25
CCMCBoardSeatA@cdvcmc.com

3 years Chris Iannazzone March 24, 2022
term until 3/25 but up 

for 2-yr trm 3/23 March-23

CCMCBoardSeatB@cdvcmc.com elected by board to fill until 3/23 election March-25

3 years Liz Senear March 2, 2021 March-24
CCMCBoardSeatD@cdvcmc.com

3 years Kelsey Appleton Hayden March 3, 2020 March-23
CCMCBoardSeatE@cdvcmc.com

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Mary Anne Bishop, Chair November-22

3 years Debra Adams Dec '21 November-24

3years Sherman Powell June '18, Feb '20 November-22

3 years Arissa Pearson December-20 November-23

3 years Krysta Williams Feb '18, Dec '20 November-23

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Nancy Bird, Chair Nov '16, '19 November-22

3 years Mark Hall, Vice Chair Nov '19 November-22

3 years Sarah Trumblee Dec '20 November-23

3 years Tania Harrison Mar '22 November-24

3 years Tom McGann Feb '21 November-23

3 years Chris Bolin Sep '17, Nov '18 November-24

Dec '21

3 years Trae Lohse Nov '18, Dec '20 November-23

vacant

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials
& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

Library Board - Appointed

CCMC Authority - Board of Directors - Elected

Planning Commission - Appointed

seat up for re-appt in Nov 22

Nov '06, '10, '13, 
'16 & '19

board/commission chair

Mar 6, 2018, Mar 2, 
2021

seat up for re-election in 2023

109



length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Mike Babic Nov '17, Dec '20 November-23

3 years Andy Craig, Chair Nov '16, '19 November-22

3 years Max Wiese November-23

3 years Ken Jones November-22

3 years Christa Hoover Dec '21 November-24

3 years Dave Glasen Sept '22 November-24

3 years Tommy Sheridan Sept '22 November-24

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Wendy Ranney, Chair November-24

3 years Henk Kruithof Nov '19 November-22

3 years Aaron Hansen Dec '21 November-24

3 years Kirsti Jurica Nov '18, Dec '21 November-23

3 years Marvin VanDenBroek November-22

3 years Karen Hallquist November-22

3 years Dave Zastrow November-23

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Cathy Sherman, Chair, professional member Aug '16, Nov '19 November-22

3 years Heather Hall, professional member Aug '16, Feb '20 November-22

3 years Sylvia Lange, NVE member Nov '19 November-22

3 years Christy Mog, professional member Apr '22 November-23

3 years Wendy Ranney, historical society member Nov '18, Dec '21 November-24

3 years Nancy Bird, PC member Nov '17, Nov '18 November-24

Dec '21

3 years Jim Casement, public member Nov '17, Dec '20 November-23

vacantseat up for re-election in 2023

Feb '13, Nov '16, 
Nov '19

Historic Preservation Commission - Appointed

Harbor Commission - Appointed

seat up for re-appt in Nov 22

board/commission chair

Parks and Recreation Commission - Appointed

Mar '11, Jan '14, 
Nov '17, Dec '20

Aug '14, Nov '15, 
Nov '18, Dec '21

Feb '14, Nov '16, 
Nov '19

Nov '13, '16, '19

Sept '14, Feb '15, 
Nov '17, Dec '20

City of Cordova, Alaska Elected Officials
& Appointed Members of City Boards and Commissions

110


	20220513 PWS Ferry Authority scope
	2022 PWS FA RFP
	McKinley Research PWS Ferry Authority Proposal.pdf
	Feasibility Study for a Prince William Sound Ferry Authority
	Submitted in association with Coastwise Corporation

	McKinley Research PWS Ferry Authority Proposal
	Project Understanding and Approach
	Workplan
	Phase 1
	Phase 2

	Project Timeline



	09-07-22 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	ARPA Fire Fighting PPE Memo
	ARPA Snow Plow Memo
	FY23Budget Schedule
	FY23 Budget Schedule

	Jan - Aug 2022 GF summary and all Funds
	correspondence primer
	08-26-22 Final SEIS from Dept of Navy on training exercises in gulf
	09-02-22 email from J. Burton re kelp farm lease proposal
	09-07-22 agency review for land use permit NVE Sheep Bay
	09-07-22 Email from T. Sheridan reiterating harbor commission interest
	09-16-22 ADL 233817 for public and agency comment
	ordinance 1202-all
	ordinance 1203-all
	ADP4AF.tmp
	CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA
	2.56.017 - Petitions—Publication.



	PA, CIP, Cal, EAOL
	sepoct.pdf
	Sept 22
	10-22.pdf
	Oct 22



	ADP1B7D.tmp
	F. Communications by and Petitions from Visitors
	N. New & Miscellaneous Business
	O. Audience Participation
	P. Council Comments




